
 

Democratic Service 
Swyddfa’r Cyngor 

CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 
 

  
 

Meeting 
 

PENSION BOARD 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
2.00 pm, MONDAY, 22ND FEBRUARY, 2021 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
 Virtual Meeting 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Lowri Haf Evans 

01286 679878 

lowrihafevans@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

(DISTRIBUTED 12/02/21) 

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/


 

PENSION BOARD 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

 
  

EMPLOYER REPRESENTATIVES  
 

  
 

Councillor Aled Ll. Evans Cyngor Gwynedd Council 
 

Huw Trainor North Wales Police 
 

Sioned Parry Conwy Borough County Council 
 
 
 
 

MEMBER REPRESENTATIVES 
 
 

Hywel Eifion Jones (retired – formerly Anglesey Council) 
 

Osian Richards Members Representative 
 

Sharon Warnes (retired - formerly Gwynedd Council) 
 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence 

 
 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of personal interest 

 
 

3.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 

 To note any items which are urgent business in the opinion of the Chairman 
so that they may be considered 

 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

5 - 9 

 The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the meeting of this 
committee held on 23rd November 2020 be signed as a true record.  

 

 

5.   MINUTES OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 

10 - 13 

 To submit, for information, minutes of the Pensions Committee meeting 
held on the 21 January 2021 
 

 

 

6.   RISK REGISTER 
 

14 - 33 

 To consider the report 

 
 

7.   AMENDED WORK PLAN 
 

34 - 35 

 To consider the Work Plan for the 2021/22 year 

 
 

8.   PENSION BOARD TRAINING REQUIREMENTS 
 

36 - 61 

 To consider the report and receive feedback from the Board 

 
 

9.   BUDGET 2021-22 PENSIONS AND INVESTMENT UNIT 
 

62 - 63 

 To note the 2021/22 financial year budget for the Pensions Administration 
and Investment sections. 

 

 

10.   CONSULTANT OBJECTIVES 
 

64 - 65 

 To report progress against current objectives and review future objectives 

 
 

11.   RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT AND LOW CARBON 
INVESTMENTS 
 

66 - 69 

 To update the Board on the Fund’s activities with responsible investing and  



 

low carbon investments, and to present a draft statement 
 

12.   PUBLIC SECTOR EXIT PAYMENT REGULATIONS 2020 
 

70 - 72 

 To consider the report 

 
 

13.   THE PENSION REGULATOR: PUBLIC SERVICE GOVERNANCE 
SURVEY 2020 
 

73 - 95 

 Receive feedback from the Board in order to complete the survey 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



PENSION BOARD 23.11.20 

  

 

 
PENSION BOARD, 23.11.2020 

 

 
Present: H. Eifion Jones (Scheme Members' Representative), Sioned Parry (Employer's 
Representative), Osian Richards (Members' Representative), Huw Trainor (Employer's 
Representative) and Sharon Warnes (Members' Representative). 
 
Officers:  Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Delyth Jones Thomas 
(Investment Manager), Meirion Jones (Pensions Manager) and Lowri Haf Evans 
(Democracy Services Officer) 
 
 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR 

 

RESOLVED to re-elect Osian Richards (Members' Representative) as Chair of 
the Board for 2020/21. 
 

2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

 
RESOLVED to re-elect Councillor Aled Evans (Employer's Representative) as 
Vice-chairman for 2020/21. 
 

3. APOLOGIES 

 
An apology had been received from Councillor Aled Evans 

 
4. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST  
 

None to note 

 
5. URGENT ITEMS 

 
None to note 

 
6. MINUTES  

 
The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting of this committee, held on 20 
July 2020, as a true record. 
 

7. PENSIONS COMMITTEE MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Pensions Committee held on 14 October 2020 were accepted for 
information.  
 
Members had no further observations arising from the minutes. 

 
8. GWYNEDD PENSION FUND'S FINAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 

MARCH 2020 AND RELEVANT AUDIT 

 
Submitted - a report along with a Statement of Accounts for the Gwynedd Pension 
Fund 2019/20 (post audit), by the Head of Finance Department providing details of 
the Pension Fund's financial activities for the year ending 31 March 2020. Members 
were reminded that a draft of the accounts had been submitted to the 20 July 2020 
meeting and although the figures had not changed, attention was drawn to some 
amendments to the narrative following an audit. It was noted that the Audit Committee 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



PENSION BOARD 23.11.20 

  

bore the responsibility for formally accepting the accounts and they had been 
approved on 15 October 2020. 

 
Reference was made to additions by the Auditors to note information on property fund 
valuations. After property fund trading had been suspended in March, it was argued 
that substantial valuation uncertainty was linked to these funds and, as a result, the 
property fund valuations on 31 March could be the subject of a higher level of 
uncertainty. In addition, it was reported that although the Auditors had not highlighted 
one specific matter in relationo to the Gwynedd Pension Fund, they had noted three 
significant matters that were common across all pension funds, which would be likely 
to affect the Fund. 
 

- GMP Equalisation 

- The McCloud case 

- The Goodwin case 

 
Gratitude was expressed for the commitment and the accuracy of the work and the 
Investment Manager and the team were thanked for preparing the work in a 
challenging and difficult period. 
 
In response to a question regarding the use of i-connect, it was noted that 99.9% of 
Fund employers were now submitting data via the i-connect process. It was reported 
that the Isle of Anglesey County Council and North Wales Police had now transferred 
and it was added that good collaboration had taken place with all employers to ensure 
use of i-connect, which now provided substantial benefits and success to the Fund. 

 
 RESOLVED to accept, for information 

 The Statement of the Accounts 2019/20 (post audit) 

 The 'ISA260' Deloitte report for the Gwynedd Pension Fund 

 The Letter of Representation 

 
9. WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP UPDATE 
 

Submitted - a report by the Investment Manager stating that since its establishment in 
2017, the Partnership had been going from strength to strength with officers meeting 
often. Since the Covid-19 pandemic period, it was noted all the Partnership's events 
had been held virtually, and work to launch new funds and to hold a number of events 
had taken place. 
 
Attention was drawn to the Global Growth Fund's performance up to 30 September 
2020. It was reported that the performance of this fund before the pandemic was 
higher than the benchmark with a strong performance by Baillie Gifford and Veritas. It 
was highlighted that this portfolio had 'deep value' investments, and due to the impact 
of the pandemic, it was noted that recent performance had fallen behind the 
benchmark. It appeared that the traditional sectors such as oil and financials had 
performed poorly and sectors such as technology had performed relatively well. It 
was explained that Russell Investments continually monitored the allocation of this 
fund. 

 
Reference was made to the transfer of fixed income that had been transferred in July 
and October 2020. An investment of £166,119,549.08 with Fidelity Global Equity had 
been transferred to the Multi Asset Credit Fund and an investment of 
£291,238,172.22 with Insight had been transferred to the Absolute Return Bond fund. 
 
Attention was drawn to Representation of the Pension Boards on the Partnership's 
Joint Committee noting that this topic had been debated for some time now. It was 
reported that the Head of Finance Department had attended a meeting recently on 

Page 6



PENSION BOARD 23.11.20 

  

the matter. The outcome of the discussion was that the Joint Committee would 
include 8 members of the Fund (with one vote each) and representation from the 
Pension Boards (within the constituent authorities - without a vote). It was reported 
that the majority of funds agreed that status needed to be given to representation of 
the Board, but a unanimous decision was required before progressing. It was noted 
that any change would involve submitting a recommendation to every individual 
Council to be accepted at a meeting of the Full Council. It was reiterated that one 
further meeting had been arranged to re-discuss prior to submitting a proposal to the 
Joint Committee. 

Members expressed their thanks for the report. 
 
During the ensuing discussion, the following observations were noted: 

 Accepted that fees were associated with investments, but it did not reflect the 
fixed costs of establishing the Partnership.  

 Accepted the transfers but was ending investments with Fidelity a good 
decision given that Fidelity's performance had been good? 

 A more formal arrangement was needed, which referred observations / 
reflected the recommendations of the Board and the way they were referred to 
the Committee, and perhaps to the Joint Committee - a suggestion was made 
to submit a report by the Board to the Committee or for a Board member to 
submit an item verbally. 

 
In response to the publication of fixed fees, it was noted that the delivery scope of this 
was in 2020/21, by creating tables that would reflect the comparisons and actual 
costs. 
 
In response to investments with Fidelity coming to an end and whether or not this was 
a good decision considering their performance, it was agreed that Fidelity's 
performance had been excellent, but following pressures from aggregate investment 
(where there was less risk and more assurance in investing with more than one 
manager), it was agreed to concur with the majority.  It was reiterated that Russell 
Investments were monitoring the performance, and should there be an under-
performance it would be possible to adapt due to the flexibility of having more than 
one manager. 
 
In response to establishing a formal procedure to share the voice of the Board, it was 
noted that the Committee Chair represented Gwynedd on the Partnership and 
observed meetings of the Gwynedd Pension Board. It was noted that there had been 
several examples of the Board's opinion being submitted to the Gwynedd Pensions 
Committee, but a situation where the Board's opinion needed to be submitted to the 
Partnership had not arisen. It was suggested that submitting a report in writing or 
orally offering recommendations to the Committee would be acceptable. 

 
RESOLVED to accept the information. 
 

10. UPDATE ON PENSION FUND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 2019/20 

 
The Investment Manager submitted a report informing Members on the work of 
monitoring and the performance of Pension Fund investments.  It was reported that 
the Gwynedd Pension Fund was in a relatively healthy position as the value of the 
fund had increased gradually since 2010, but a substantial fall had occurred on 31 
March 2020 due to the impact of the COVID pandemic. 
 
There had been a strong quarter 1 performance with markets bouncing back from the 
decline seen in the last quarter of 2019/20 with global equity values continuing to 
increase, especially in the last few weeks after the news of a potential vaccine. It was 

Page 7



PENSION BOARD 23.11.20 

  

added that fund property returns had also generally performed well against the 
benchmark. There was no trading from March, but the market re-opened in 
September. It was noted that residential assets and supermarkets had performed 
well, but the high street had not performed as well, and there was uncertainty about 
the future of offices. Reference was made to the Lothbury Property Trust, which had 
performed below the benchmark because of their high exposure to the retail sector, 
while the other Managers had exposure to sectors such as industrial sites and health 
centres and had therefore performed better. 
 
Members expressed their thanks for the report. 
 
In response to a question regarding the impact of Brexit on the property market, it 
was reported that the Gwynedd Pension Fund held some 6% of stock in the United 
Kingdom and, therefore, a huge, harmful impact was not anticipated. It was reiterated 
that the property benchmark had been set at 10% and moving funds and 
underinvestment by the market recently had been very transformational over time. It 
was agreed to include details of the benchmark percentages in future reports. 
 
RESOLVED to accept the information. 

 
 
11. COMMUNICATION POLICY 2020  
 

Submitted - the report of the Pensions Manager highlighting a wish to receive 
feedback from the Board about the new Communication Policy Statement. It was 
explained that the Fund must provide, maintain and publish a communication policy 
statement in accordance with Regulation 67 of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) Administration Regulations. It was added that the communication 
policy must be revised and republished following any change in policy. Following 
various changes to communication methods recently, the statement would have to be 
amended to include current communication methods and add the use of Microsoft 
Teams, I-Connect and the Self-service resource. It was noted that Gwynedd's policy 
had not been updated since 2010 and, therefore, feedback on the policy from the 
Board would be appreciated prior to its submission for approval from the Pensions 
Committee. 

 
During the ensuing discussion, the following observations were noted: 

 The amended Policy Statement was clear, fair and comprehensive. 

 When amending, there was a need to ensure that no information would be 
lost. 

 It was important to listen and respond to users' wishes, e.g. be ready to 
respond to their wish if they preferred to receive information on paper. 

 There was a need to refer to the Wales Pension Partnership - important that 
the communication procedure between the Fund and the Partnership was 
included. 

 Virtual Meetings v On-site Meetings - a working group had been established to 
identify advantages and to consider methods of providing both options in one 
meeting. 

 
RESOLVED to accept the information. 

 
Attention was drawn to the fact that the Managers' Survey had not been undertaken 
as per usual and it was suggested to hold a special meeting to discuss and share 
opinions. It was added that the Board’s work programme also needed to be updated 
(to include the Hymans training questionnaire). 
 

Page 8



PENSION BOARD 23.11.20 

  

RESOLVED to ask officers to update the work programme and share it with 
Members for observations / additions. 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 2:00pm and concluded at 3:15pm. 
 
  
 
 
 
   

 

Page 9



 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 21-01-21 

 

 

Attendance:  Councillor Peredur Jenkins – Chair 
   Councillor Stephen Churchman – Vice-chair 
 

Councillors: Goronwy Edwards (Conwy County Borough Council), Simon Glyn, John Brynmor 
Hughes, Aled Wyn Jones, John Pughe Roberts, Ioan Thomas, and Robin Williams (Isle of 
Anglesey Council) 
 

Officers:  Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Delyth Jones-Thomas (Investment 
Manager), Meirion Jones (Pensions Manager) and Lowri Haf Evans (Democracy Services 
Officer). 

 
Others invited:   Sharon Warnes (observing – Pensions Board Member) 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 

 
None to note 

 

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
None to note 

 

3. URGENT ITEMS 

 
None to note 

 

4.   MINUTES 

 
The Chair accepted the minutes of the meeting held on 14 October 2020 as a true 

record. 

 

5. BUDGET APPROVAL FOR 2021/22  

 
Submitted - a report by the Investment Manager relating to a request for the Committee 
to approve the budget for the 2021-2022 financial year, for the Pension Administration 
and Investment Sections. 
 
It was noted that 2019/2020 was the first time for the budget for the Units to be 
submitted to the Pensions Committee for approval, and it was now intended to submit 
the information annually. The 2019/20 budget was amended according to changes to 
the staffing structure of the Pensions Administration and Investment Sections - there 
were only minor adjustments to the 2021/22 budget, with the basic budgets remaining 
the same. 
 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 5



RESOLVED to approve the 2021/22 financial year budget for the Pensions 

Administration and Investment sections. 
 

 

6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2020/21 – MID YEAR REVIEW 

 
Submitted, for information – a report highlighting the Council's actual Treasury 
Management activity during the current financial year. It was highlighted that, during the 
six months between 1 April and 30 September 2020, the Council’s borrowing activity had 
remained within the limits originally set. There were no defaults by banks in which the 
Council deposited money. It was added that it was estimated that the Council's 
investment income was lower than the expected income in the 2020/21 budget.  
 
In the light of the pandemic crisis and the likelihood of unexpected demands on cash 
flow, the Council had kept more cash available at very short notice than was normal.  
Liquid cash had been diversified over several counterparties and Money Market Funds 
to manage both credit and liquidity risks.  
 
It was explained that £10m of the Council's investments were held in externally 
managed strategic pooled property and equity funds where short-term security and 
liquidity were lesser considerations. Consequently, the objectives were realised through 
regular revenue income and long-term price stability.  
 
It was reported that the Council measured the financial performance of its treasury 
management activities both in terms of its impact on the revenue budget and its 
relationship to benchmark interest rates. It was noted that the Bank rate, which was 
0.75% in February, now stood at 0.1%, but interest earned from short dated money 
markets would be significantly lower. Attention was drawn to the interest rate indicators, 
and it was noted that the risk indicator ‘upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% 
rise in interest rates’ complied due to the impact of poor interest rates. 
 
With the weak and unstable outlook, it was reported that the Council was investing as 
must as possible in a challenging period; was continuing to do its best to make gains by 
spreading risk, but was also operating carefully in line with Arlingclose's advice. 
 
Members expressed their thanks for the report. 
 
In response to a question about the outlook, it was noted that the report had been 
written in September 2020 

 

RESOLVED to accept the report for information. 

 

 

7. BAILLIE GIFFORD GLOBAL ALPHA PARIS ALIGNED FUND 
 

 
Submitted - the report of the Investment Manager requesting the Committee's approval 
to agree to the movement of its current Baillie Gifford core fund to the Baillie Gifford 
Global Alpha Paris Aligned fund. Members were reminded that Baillie Gifford had 
submitted information on the Alpha Paris Aligned fund in a meeting of the Investment 

Page 11



Panel on 14 October 2020. It was explained that the Global Alpha Paris Aligned Fund 
was a lower carbon variant of the core model and was aligned to the objectives of the 
Paris Agreement and the investment principles of the Gwynedd Pension Fund. 
 

It was reiterated that all the constituent pension funds that were part of the Global 
Growth Fund must agree to the transfer. Once the funds had made their decision 
locally, an official decision would be made by the Joint Committee. It was reported that 
this was a positive step forward, and that more information would follow about further 
improvements. 
 
Members expressed their thanks for the report. 

 

RESOLVED to approve the movement of the current holdings in the Baillie Gifford 

Core Fund to the Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Paris Aligned fund which forms part 

of the WPP Global Growth fund in accordance with the discussion at the most 

recent Investment Panel. 

 

 

8. SETTING OBJECTIVES FOR INVESTMENT CONSULTANTS 
 

 
Submitted - the report of the Investment Manager, reporting on progress against current 
objectives and requesting that the Committee reviewed and approved the objectives for 
2020/21. It was reported, following a review of the of the investment consulting and 
fiduciary management markets, that the Competition and Markets Authority had noted 
that Pension Scheme Trustees should set objectives for their investment consultants, 
and clearly stipulate the expectations upon them. 
 
Reference was made to the current objectives and the progress made against those 
objectives during 2019/20. It was noted that the objectives had been operational since 
December 2019, but had not been formally accepted by the Committee despite the 
compliance statement having been signed by the Committee Chair by the required 
deadline (7 January 2021).   
 
It was reported that Hymans was delivering good work, providing comprehensive reports 
for the investment panel, offering practical and prompt advice, responses and 
correspondence, and performing in accordance with the objectives. 
 
Members expressed their thanks for the report, and an observation was made that it 
was expected that the objectives were submitted annually to the Pension Committee in 
accordance with the Act's requirements. 
 
Mr Paul Potter from Hymans was thanked for his advice and support to the Pension 
Fund over the past 12 years. He was wished a happy retirement. 

 

RESOLVED to accept the report and to formally approve the objectives that had 

already been set for the Fund's investment consultants.

Page 12



 

9. PUBLIC SECTOR EXIT PAYMENT REGULATIONS 2020 

 
Submitted for information – the report of the Pensions Manager providing an update on 
the Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations that came into force on 4 
November 2020. Attention was drawn in the report to the impact of the recent reforms 
on public sector workers, and to further (draft) amendments that had been proposed by 
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government which were expected to 
come into force during spring 2021. 
It was highlighted that the reforms were creating confusion and additional work 
pressures, and in response to these national factors, the Fund's administrative software 
provider had to update the system to calculate the new options. 
 
During the ensuing discussion, the following observations were noted:  
 

 Exit payment regulations were an extremely complex and technical area 

 The decision was out of the Authority's hands, and there was therefore no choice 
in the matter 

 
In response to an observation that the exit payments cap would not be index linked, and 
whether the cap was likely to be reviewed, it was noted that there would be no further 
amendment or review of this.  
 
In response to a question on whether a lump sum could be used to avoid the cap 
threshold, it was noted that if there were further changes to the regulations, a lump sum 
could be used to receive reduced benefits 
 

RESOLVED to accept the report for information. 
 

10. NEW COMMUNICATION POLICY STATEMENT  
 

Submitted - the report of the Pensions Manager, requesting that the Committee adopted 
the new Communication Policy Statement. It was explained that the Fund must provide, 
maintain and publish a Communication Policy Statement in accordance with Regulation 
67 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Administration Regulations. It 
was added that the communication policy must be revised and republished following any 
change in policy. Following various changes to communication methods recently, the 
statement had to be amended to include current communication methods and add the 
use of Microsoft Teams, I-Connect and the Self-service resource. It was noted that 
Gwynedd's policy had not been updated since 2010. The policy statement had been 
submitted to the Pension Board on 23.11.20 and the policy had been revised in 
accordance with their comments. 

 
During the ensuing discussion, the following observation was noted: 

 There was a need to consider communication methods with prospective 
employers 

 
In response to an observation regarding communication with prospective Members, it 
was noted that it was a matter for each employer to note that membership of the 
scheme was one of the benefits of the post. 
 
In response to a question, it was confirmed that the communication policy statement 
was consistent with Gwynedd Council's Language Policy. 
 
 

RESOLVED to approve the adoption of the new Communication Policy Statement 

Page 13



 

 
 
The meeting commenced at 2:00 and concluded at 3:05pm 

Page 14



MEETING: Pension Board  
 

DATE: 22 February 2021 
 

TITLE:  
 

Risk Register 

PURPOSE:  
 

To understand the risks relating to the 
Pension Fund and scrutinise the Risk 
Register 

AUTHOR:  
 

Delyth Jones-Thomas, Investment Manager 
Meirion Jones, Pensions Manager 
 

 
  
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
The Gwynedd Pension Fund has a Risk Register in order to identify and monitor 
significant risks. The Risk Register also includes the processes in place to mitigate 
the risks where possible. 
 
A copy of the first risk register was shown to the Board in the meeting on the 5th 
April 2017. It was updated in 2018, 2019 and again now in 2021 in line with 
comments received from the Board and changes that have taken place in the 
meantime. 
  
A copy of the current Risk Register is attached at Appendix A  
 
It is a working document and will be reviewed regularly and updated for any 
significant risks that develop.  
 
2. THE BOARD’S ROLE  
 

The members of the Board are asked to scrutinise the risk register and bring any 

comments or suggestions to the meeting. 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



GWYNEDD PENSION FUND  

RISK REGISTER: Version 4 – February 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment of Impact 
  Financial Reputation Stakeholder/Customer 

1 Negligible < £35k Minimal and transient 
loss of public trust. 

Minimal impact on stakeholders or 
customers. 

2   Minor £35k - £300k Slight loss of trust with 
no lasting impact. Little 
adverse publicity. 

Minor impact on stakeholders or 
customers and customer 
dissatisfaction. Limited service 
disruption. 

3 Moderate £300k - £3m Moderate loss of trust 

that receives significant 
adverse publicity locally 
with no lasting impact. 

No lasting impact. 

Moderate disruption to stakeholders, 
moderate impact on customers and 
customer dissatisfaction. Moderate 
service disruption. 

4 Major £3m - £30m Significant loss of trust 
and receives local media 
attention with potential 
for lasting impact. 

Significant service disruption and 
opposition from stakeholders and/or 
customers. Threat of legal action. 

5 Catastrophic > £30m Significant loss of trust 
and receives national 
media attention with 
potential for persisting 
impact. 

Major service disruption and significant 
opposition from stakeholders and/or 
customers. Legal action. Long term 
public memory. 

Risk Assessment Matrix 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 

5 10 15 20 25 

4 8 12 16 20 

3 6 9 12 15 

2 4 6 8 10 

1 2 3 4 5 

 Impact 

P
age 15



 

Assessment of Likelihood 
  Probability Descriptors Numerical Probability 

1 Rare This will probably never happen/recur. Under 1% 

2 Unlikely Do not expect it to happen/recur, but it is possible it may do 
so. 

1% - under 5% 

3 Possible Might happen or recur occasionally. 5% - under 20% 

4 Likely Will probably happen/recur, but it is not a persistent issue or 
circumstances 

20% - under 50% 

5 Almost Certain Will undoubtedly happen/recur, possibly frequently. A project 
more likely to fail than succeed. 

Over 50% 

 

 

 

Risk 

No. 

Description of Risk and 
Potential Impact 

 

Inherent 

Risk 

Mitigating Controls 

Current 

Risk 
 

Risk 
Owner Additional Plan 

 
Time 
scale 

Im
p
a
ct 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 

C
o
m

b
in

e
d
 

S
co

re
 

Im
p
a
ct 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 

C
o
m

b
in

e
d
 

S
co

re
 

Governance 

 The Administering Authority 
does not have appropriate 
governance arrangements 
including the requirement for 
a Pension Board resulting in: 

 Non-compliance with 
legislation or best 
practiceInability to 
determine policy, 
make effective 

4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 12 Gwynedd Pension Fund (GPF) has a 
Governance Policy Statement and a 
Governance Compliance Statement 
as required by the LGPS Regulations 
2008. 
 
Both statements are reviewed and 
updated when required. Scheme 
employers are consulted when 
changes are proposed to ensure the 
policy is still appropriate. 
 

3 1 3 Head of 
Finance 
 
Investment 
Manager 
 
 

  

P
age 16



decisions and deliver 
services. 

 Risk to reputation 

 

The Statement is available on the 
Gwynedd Pensions website: 
www.gwynedd.gov.uk 
 
GPF has a Pensions Committee to 
discharge the Council’s duties as 
Administering Authority of the 
Pension Fund. 
 
Gwynedd Pension Board has been 
established as required by the Public 
Service Pension Act 2013. 
 
Support and training are being 
provided to ensure that the 
members of the board have the 
knowledge and skills to undertake 
their role. 

 Conflict of Interests affect, or 
are seen to affect decision 
making 

2 2 4 Committee and Board members are 
aware of the legal responsibilities 
 
All members of the Pension Board 
declare any possible conflicts and 
conflicts at the beginning of each 
meeting. 

1 2 2 Pension 
Committee 
 
Chairman 
of the 
Pension 
Board 
 
Head of 
Finance 
 

  

 The Pensions Committee and 
the Pension Board are unable 
to fulfil their responsibilities 
effectively resulting in: 

4 3 12 The Committee has adopted the 
CIPFA Code of Practice on 
Knowledge and Skills and regular 
training is provided to ensure that 

3 2 6 Investment 
Manager 
 
 

The new members 
of the Committee 
and the Board have 
received basic 
training. 

 

P
age 17

http://www.gwynedd.gov.uk/


 Non-compliance with 
legislation or best 
practice 

 
 Inability to determine 

policy, make decisions 
and / or deliver 
service. 
 

 Risk to reputations. 

members have the level of 
understanding required. 
 
A training and induction programme 
is available for new Committee and 
Board members. 
 
The Fund subscribes to relevant 
bodies (i.e. CIPFA and LAPFF) and 
sends representatives to major 
conferences. 
 
Committee and Board members are 
made aware of and adhere to the 
Governance Compliance Statement 
and are encouraged to identify 
training requirements. 

 
 
Relevant training is 
offered to 
Committee 
members and board 
members. 

Funding and Investments       

 The Committee Members and 
Investment Officers make 
inappropriate decisions as a 
result of insufficient 
knowledge of financial 
markets and inadequate 
investment and actuarial 
advice received resulting in: 
 

 Poor Fund 
performance 

 
 Financial loss 

 

5 3 15 GPF Investment Strategy is set in 
accordance with LGPS investment 
regulations. 

The Investment Strategy takes the 
Fund’s liabilities into account. 

The Investment Strategy is 
approved and reviewed by the 
Pensions Committee. 

GPF uses an external investment 
advisor who provides specialist 
guidance to the Investment Panel 

2 2 4 Head of 
Finance 
 
Investment 
Manager 
 
 

  

P
age 18



 Increased employer 
contributions 

and Pensions Committee regarding 
the Investment Strategy. 

Members and Officers are 
encouraged to challenge advice and 
guidance received. 

 The Pension Fund has 
insufficient assets to meet its 
long term liabilities.  
 
The Pension Fund’s 
investment strategy fails to 
produce the required returns. 
 
Performance is damaged by: 
 Fund Managers failure to 

produce the required 
returns. 

 Fund managers damage 
performance by failing to 
make organisational 
changes or manager 
departures. 

 
Resulting in  
 Financial loss 
 Insufficient funds 

available to meet future 
obligations 

 
 

5 3 15 Triennial actuarial valuations provide 
periodic indications of the growth in 
assets against liabilities. Employer 
contribution rates are set in 
response to this. 

The 2019 actuarial valuation 
includes provision for the fund to 
achieve full funding over 17 years. 
The 31 March 2019 valuation 
showed that there was 108% 
provision for the Gwynedd Fund. 

GPF investments are diversified 
across a range of different types of 
assets to minimise the impact of 
losses in individual markets. 

Fund-specific benchmarks and 
targets are set. 

Fund assets are kept under regular 
review as part of the Fund’s 
performance management process. 

Fund managers are thoroughly 
vetted prior to appointment and 
performance is reviewed regularly 

2 2 4 Investment 
Manager 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Although the fund 
was 108% funded 
as at 31 March 2019 
the fund still uses 
prudent 
assumptions for the 
valuation. 

 

P
age 19



against the benchmark and 
performance objectives by the 
Investment Panel.  

Appropriate action may be taken if a 
Fund Manager is underperforming. 

The depth of expertise in the fund 
manager’s team will be assessed as 
part of the appointment process. 

Performance targets are agreed by 
the Pensions Committee and are 
based upon recommendations for 
the external advisor. 

The Pensions Committee have the 
power to terminate a fund 
manager’s contract if it is deemed 
that the manager has not performed 
as expected or there are concerns 
about future performance  due to 
organisational change or manager 
departures. 

 The fund is exposed to 
unnecessary risks and 
avoidable costs due to poorly 
structured investment 
arrangements resulting in: 
 

 Financial loss 

5 3 15 The Fund aims to ensure best value 
and to minimise exposure to risk as 
follows: 
 
The Fund’s investments are 
diversified across a range of 
different types of assets to minimise 
the impact of losses in individual 
markets. 

2 2 4 Investment 
Manager 
 
 

  

P
age 20



 
Investment managers provide 
invoices for fees and disclosure of 
fees within funds. 
 
Specialist services such as 
transitions or currency transfers are 
considered where appropriate in 
order to reduce costs. 
 
Banking and custodian 
arrangements are reviewed and 
retendered as appropriate. 

 Collapse of a fund manager 
or negligence, fraud or wilful 
default committed by a fund 
manager resulting in: 
 

 Financial loss 

4 3 12 The Fund considers the financial 
stability of managers during the 
appointment process and the 
situation is kept under review. 

GPF uses a global custodian service 
to ensure that investment of assets 
is segregated from custody of 
assets. 

Legal requirements for fund 
managers are set out in their 
management agreements. 

Fund managers are required to be 
fully compliant with Financial 
Conduct Authority (FCA), the 
Pensions Regulator (TPR) and other 
regulatory requirements. 

2 3 6 Investment 
Manager 
 
 

  

P
age 21



The Fund’s custodian can deal 
provide a transition service if a fund 
manager is being wound up. 

 Market risk - Market crash 
leading to failure to reduce 
the deficit resulting in: 
 

 Financial loss 
 

 Increased employer 
contribution costs. 

 

5 4 15 The Fund is diversified across a 
range of asset classes to mitigate 
the impact of poor performance in 
an individual market segment. 
 
Investment performance and 
monitoring arrangements exist 
which provide the investment 
officers with the flexibility to 
rebalance the portfolio in a timely 
manner. 
 
The long term nature of the 
liabilities provides some mitigation, 
in that markets fluctuate down and 
up which significantly reduces the 
impact. 

3 3 9 Investment 
Manager 
 
 

  

 Liquidity risk - insufficient 

funds to meet liabilities as 

they fall due.  

 

4 3 12 Management prepares periodic cash 

flow forecasts to understand and 

manage the timing of the Fund’s 

cash flows.  

 

The appropriate strategic level of 
cash balances to be held forms part 
of the Fund investment strategy. 

4 2 8 Investment 
Manager 
 

  

 Interest rate risk-  Arises 
from the risk that the fair 

4 3 12 The Fund’s interest rate risk is 
routinely monitored in accordance 

4 2 8 Investment 
Manager 

  

P
age 22



value or future cash flows of 
a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates 

with the Fund’s risk management 
strategy, including monitoring the 
exposure to interest rates and 
assessment of actual interest rates 
against the relevant benchmarks. 

 

 Currency risk- the fair value 

of future cash flows of a 

financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes 

in foreign exchange rates 

which could result in: 

 Funding level 
decreases. 

 Increase in employers' 
costs as employer 
contribution rates 
would need to be 
raised. 

 

4 3 12 Establish & review strategic asset 
allocation (within regions). 

4 2 8 Investment 
Manager 
 

  

 The Fund fails to adequately 
account for climate change, 
climate risk and ESG factors 
which could result in: 
 

 Financial loss to assets 
within the fund 

 
 Reputational risk to 

the Pension Fund 

4 3 12 Establish and develop a suitable 
climate risk policy 
 
Constant engagement and 
challenging of managers on how 
they account for climate risk/ 
change and ESG factors 

4 2 8 Investment 
Manager 

Formulate a suitable 
climate risk policy 

2021 

P
age 23



 Pay and price inflation are 
significantly more than 
anticipated leading to: 
 

 An increase in liabilities 
which is higher than 
the previous actuarial 
valuation estimate. 

3 3 9 The focus of the actuarial valuation 
process is on real returns on assets, 
net of price and pay increases.  

Employers pay for their own salary 
awards. 

The Fund has committed to 
investments in infrastructure funds 
which helps to mitigate this risk.   

2 3 6 Investment 
Manager 
 
 

  

 Increase in number of early 
retirements due to public 
service cuts and/or ill health 
leading to pension liabilities 
increasing 
 
An increase in liabilities which 
exceeds the previous 
valuation estimate. 

3 5 10 Employers are charged the extra 
capital cost of non-ill health 
retirements following each individual 
decision. 
 
Employer ill health retirement is 
monitored. 
 
Small employers are required to 
take out the ill health retirement 
insurance provided by the Fund. 

1 5 5 Investment 
Manager 
 

  

 The average life expectancy 
of pensioners is greater than 
assumed in actuarial 
assumptions. 
 
An increase in liabilities which 
exceeds the previous 
valuation estimate. 

4 4 16 Life expectancy assumptions are 
reviewed at each valuation. 
 
The Fund uses bespoke assumptions 
based on the life expectancy across 
Gwynedd Pension Fund’s area. 
 
Mortality assumptions include some 
allowance for future increases in life 
expectancy. 

2 4 8 Investment 
Manager 
 
 

  

 Scheme employers’ 
contributions to the Fund are 

4 3 12 Formal timescales for receipt of 
contributions. 

2 2 4 Investment 
Manager 

  

P
age 24



not received or are processed 
or recorded completely and 
accurately 
 
Increased costs across all the 
remaining scheme employers 

 
The team monitor the receipt of 
contributions to the fund closely. 
 
The team monitor the receipt of 
contributions to the fund. 
 
The team communicates regularly 
with scheme employers to ensure 
that contributions are made in a 
timely manner and are recorded 
accurately. 
 
Details of any outstanding and 
overdue contributions are recorded 
and appropriate action is taken in 
order to recover payments. 

 
 

 An employer ceases to exist 
with insufficient funding 
available to settle any 
outstanding debts, or refuses 
to pay the cessation value. 
 
Departing employer does not 
fully meet its liabilities which 
leads to increased costs 
across the remaining scheme 
employers. 

4 3 12 The risk is mitigated by: 
Vetting prospective employers 
before admission and ensuring that 
they fully understand their 
obligations.  
 
Applications for admission to the 
Fund are considered carefully and a 
bond or guarantee is put into place 
if required. 
 
Outstanding liabilities will be 
assessed and recovered from any 
successor bodies or spread amongst 
remaining employers. 
 

3 3 9 Head of 
Finance 
 
Pensions 
Manager 

Identified 7 
employers with no 
Admission 
Agreements.  Have 
taken steps to 
rectify this. 

2021 

P
age 25



The actuarial valuation attempts to 
balance recovery period with risk of 
withdrawal. 
 
If necessary, appropriate legal 
action will be taken. 
 

 A significant number of LGPS 
members transfer their 
pension pots to other 
pensions providers in order to 
obtain a capital sum under 
the Government’s “Freedom 
and Choice” legislation 
resulting in: 
Significant cashflow out of 
the Fund. 
 
Reduction in assets greater 
than reduction in the Fund’s 
liabilities. 

4 3 12 The risk is mitigated by: 
Effective communication of the 
benefits of remaining in the LGPS. 
 
 
 
 
Actuarial calculation of transfer 
value should ensure transfer value 
does not exceed reduction in 
liability. 
 
Requirement to seek financial 
Advice if transfer exceeds £30,000 

2 3 6 Pensions 
Manager  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Investment 
Manager 

  

 The result of the EU 
Referendum and the decision 
to leave the European Union 
results in significant economic 
instability and slowdown and 
as a consequence lower 
investment returns resulting 
in: 
 

 Financial loss and / or 
failure to meet return 
expectations. 

 

5 4 20 The Fund’s investments are 
diversified across a range of 
different types of assets to minimise 
the impact of losses in individual 
markets.  
 
The Fund will consider the impact 
when the terms of leaving the EU 
are clear and take any actions 
required. 
 

3 4 12 Investment 
Manager 

  

P
age 26



 Increased employer 
contribution costs. 

Custody 

 Failure of custodian leading 
to losses which results in: 
 

 Failure to reduce the 
deficit  

 
 Financial loss 

 
 

5 3 15 Fund assets are protected in the 
event of insolvency of the custodian. 
 
The custodian must adhere to FCA 
and TPR financial regulations. 

2 2 4 Investment 
Manager 

  

Wales Pension Partnership 

 The Gwynedd Pension Fund 
has insufficient resources 
available to deliver the 
pooling proposal within the 
required timescale without 
impacting the day-do-day 
management of the fund.  
 
The management of the 
Pension Fund is affected due 
to existing resources working 
on the establishment of the 
investment pool. 

5 5 25  5 5 25 Head of 
Finance 

Additional staffing 
resources will be 
required when it 
becomes apparent 
that insufficient 
resources exist to 
take forward the 
proposal without 
impacting the day-
to-day management 
of the fund. 

 

Communication 

 Insufficient communication 
and engagement with the 
Pension Fund Stakeholders. 
 

3 3 9 A Communications Policy is in place. 
 
The Gwynedd Pension Fund website 
is kept up to date. 
 

3 2 6 Pensions 
Manager 

Gwynedd Pension 
Fund website 
requires revision 
 
 

2022 

P
age 27



Non-compliance with 
legislation and/or best 
practice. 
 
Inability to determine policy, 
make effective decisions 
and/or deliver service. 
 
Reputation risk. 

Fund Performance is reported to the 
Investment & Pension Fund 
Committee on a regular basis. 
 
Meetings are held periodically with 
the Fund’s Employing Authorities. 
 
Annual Benefit Statements and 
newsletters are sent annually to 
active and deferred Fund members. 
 
The contact list for employers is 
updated regularly. 
 
An AGM is held for employers and 
Trade Unions. 
 
The annual report and accounts are 
published on the Gwynedd Pensions 
website. 
 
A Member Self Service website is 
available to members to calculate 
their own benefits. 

Data Protection 

 The Pension Fund systems 
and data may not be secure 
and appropriately maintained. 

 Loss of sensitive data. 
 Reputation risk. 

 
Financial loss arising from 
legal action. 

3 2 6 It is a mandatory requirement for all 
employees to undertake Data 
Protection training and to adhere to 
Gwynedd’s data protection policy. 
 
Egress (A secure email system) 
email system is used where possible 
to send emails to employers not 

3 1 3 Pension 
Manager 

  

P
age 28



listed on the Secure Email 
Organisation list.  

Pension Administration 

 Pension benefits are not paid: 
 Risk of financial loss 

arising from 
compensation claims 

 Damage to reputation. 

4 2 8 The payroll system is set up to pay 
pensioners monthly. 
 
Disaster recovery plan in place with 
Heywood which will restore data 
within 7 days in the event of system 
failure. 

4 1 4 Pension 
Manager 

  

 Failure of scheme 
membership data and 
pension benefit calculation 
processes leading to fraud, 
corruption or error. 

 Unauthorised 
payments under the 
Finance Act 2004. 

 Risk of financial loss 
and damage to 
reputation. 

3 2 6 Information and instructions are 
only accepted from authorised 
sources. 
 
Employers are required to review 
and confirm membership records 
annually or monthly using the 
secure data portal iConnect 
 
Benefit calculations are checked by 
senior colleagues. 
 
All transactions comply with DCC 
financial regulations and are subject 
to independent authorisation. 
 
Members approaching 75 are 
separately identified monthly. 

3 1 3 Pension 
Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Failure of employing authority 
to provide timely and 
accurate member data 
resulting in delays or errors 
with benefit payments. 

3 3 9 Administration Strategy is in place 
and employer duties are clearly 
identified. 
 

3 3 9 Pension 
Manager 

  

P
age 29



 
Risk of financial loss and 
damage to reputation. 

Employing authorities are contacted 
for outstanding information when it 
is identified that information is 
missing or contains errors. 

 Non-compliance with 
legislation and failure to 
correctly implement new 
legislation and 
regulations, resulting in: 

 Incorrect payments 
being made. 

 Risk of financial loss 
and damage to 
reputation 
 

3 3 9 LGA/External training. 
 
Project work approach to 
implementation of legislative 
changes. 
 
In house training for all staff. 
 
 

2 2 4 Pension 
Manager 

Additional resources 
required to 
implement McCloud 
remedy 

2022 

 Pension benefits continue to 
be paid to deceased 
pensioners. 
 
Risk of financial loss and 
damage to reputation. 

2 3 6 All pensioners are contacted 
annually. 
 
Pensioners are incorporated into 
National Fraud Initiative. 
 
Further targeted checks are 
conducted with credit reference 
agencies as appropriate. 
 
Monthly mortality screening is 
undertaken and any positive 
matches are ceased immediately 
 
Tell Us Once service is in operation 

2 2 4 Pension 
Manager 

 
 

 

 System failure 
 Loss of sensitive data. 
 Reputation risk. 

5 2 10 The system is backed-up daily.  
 

5 1 5 Pension 
Manager 

  

P
age 30



 Financial loss arising 
from legal action. 

A full disaster recovery plan is in 
place and tested annually (In line 
with Gwynedd Council’s policy). 

 Member Self Service failure 
 Reputation risk. 

 

5 2 10 Hosted by software provider 
Heywood  

5 1 5 Pension 
Manager 

  

 Cyber Attack 
 Loss of sensitive data. 
 Systems damaged or 

destroyed. 
 Reputation risk. 

 
Financial loss arising from 
legal action. 

3 3 9 Firewall in operation 
 
Software regularly updated with 
latest security features 
 
The system is backed up daily 
 
Password access is required 

3 2 6 Pension 
Manager 

  

 Employing authorities not 
fulfilling their 
responsibilities e.g. not 
supplying us with 
correct employee data or not 
supplying it in a 
timely manner 

 Incorrect benefit 
calculations 

 
Delays while we request 
missing information 

3 2 6 - Admin strategy details 
employer responsibilities and 
timescales 

- Advice and consultancy 
provided. 

- Yearly checks on data to 
highlight gaps 

- Employer administration 
meetings held periodically. 

Guidance available on website. 

3 1 3 Pension 
Manager 

Plan to set Service 
Level Agreement’s 
as there is currently 
no consequences for 
not fulfilling their 
responsibilities 

 

 Failure to comply with 
disclosure regulations 
e.g. the requirement to issue 
information 
within a certain timescale 
after a request/event 

 

3 2 6 Robust workflow management 
system in place. 

3 1 3 Pension 
Manager 

  

P
age 31



Complaints / Fines 

 Failure to issue Annual 
Benefit statements to 
active and deferred members 
by 31st August: 

- Reputational risk and 
complaints 

- Fines 

2 4 8 Project management approach 
- Regular contact with 

employers to get data. 
 
Statements are presented online at 
the self-service web site. 
 
Monthly interfacing to reduce 
workload at year end with the main 
employers (iConnect) 
 
 
 

2 3 6 Pension 
Manager 

  

Internal processes 

 Concentration of knowledge 
in a small number of officers 
and risk of departure of 
key staff. 
 
The risk of losing key staff 
could lead to a breakdown in 
internal processes and service 
delivery, causing financial 
loss and potential risk to 
reputation. 

4 3 12 - Knowledge of all tasks shared 
by at least two team 
members and can in addition 
be covered by senior staff. 

- Training requirements are set 
out in job descriptions and 
reviewed annually with team 
members through the 
appraisal process. 

- Specific relevant 
qualifications for 
administration and 
investment staff. 

- External consultants and 
independent adviser available 
for short term assistance. 

 

4 2 8 Pension 
Manager 
and 
Investment 
Manager 

Internal ‘how to 
guides’ are being 
developed on all 
internal processes 
 
 

2021 

Uncontrollable External Factors 

P
age 32



 Normal operations 
disrupted by uncontrollable 
external factors 
 
Service delivery threats from 
fire, bomb, extreme weather, 
electrical faults, sickness, 
epidemic, pandemic etc. 
 
Insufficient daily back up, 
disaster recovery, and IT 
cover to support 
systems. 
 
Temporary loss of ability to 
provide service to 
stakeholders 
 

5 5 25 - Working from home where 
possible 

- Disaster Recovery Plan for 
pensions system with the 
software provider for Member 
Self Service 

- Business Continuity/Disaster  
Recovery Plan for the 
Authority with IT firewalls 

 
 

3 5 15 Pension 
Manager 

Develop new 
methods of working 

 

 

P
age 33



 

 

Meeting: Pension Board 

Date: 22/02/2021 

Title: Amended Work Plan 

Purpose: To form the Work Plan for the 2021/22 

year 

Author: Meirion Jones, Pensions Manager 

 

1. Introduction 

Following setting the last work plan in May 2019 we now need suggestions for items 

to be included for the 2021/22 work plan. 

2. Draft Work Plan 

The work programme below has been drafted and includes the matters identified 

following consideration by the Board in previous meetings and matters arising. 

WORK PLAN 2021/22  

April 19 2021 

 General update on Pensions Administration including complaints about 

pensions Administration 2020/21. 

 Board Report for the Pension Fund Annual Report 2018/19 

 McLoud project update. 

 Update on the Wales Pension Partnership 

 Matters arising from the Pensions Committee (if applicable) 

 Breaches of the law (if applicable) 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



 Report changes to the risk register (if applicable) 

 

 

Summer 2021 

 Gwynedd Pension Fund investment performance update 

 Update on the Wales Pension Partnership 

 Cyber Risk 

 The Pension Fund Statement of Accounts 

 Matters arising from the Pensions Committee 

 Governance Update / Issues from the Scheme Advisory Board 

 Breaches of the law (if applicable) 

 Report changes to the risk register (if applicable) 

Winter 2021 

 Update on the Wales Pension Partnership 

 Pensions Regulator Governance Review 

 Matters arising from the Pensions Committee and AGM (if applicable) 

 Breaches of the law (if applicable) 

 Report changes to the risk register (if applicable) 

Spring 2022 

 General update on Pensions Administration including 2021 Pensions 

Administration Complaints 

 2022 Valuation 

 Update on the Wales Pension Partnership 

 Matters arising from the Pensions Committee (if applicable) 

 Breaches of the law (if applicable) 

 Report changes to the risk register (if applicable) 

Issues arising during the year can be added to the programme as required. 

Doubtless, there will be ideas from members who have attended relevant training 

and events.   

3. Recommendation 

Board members are asked to consider the above program and suggest additional 

items or changes. 

 

Page 35



 

 

 
Meeting: Pension Board 

Date: 22/02/2021 

Title: Pension Board Training Requirements 

Purpose: Receive feedback from the Board 

Author: Meirion Jones, Pensions Manager 

 
1. Introduction 

 
The Fund recognises the importance of training in ensuring pension fund committee members, 

pension board members and officers attain, and then maintain, the relevant knowledge and skills 
needed to administer the Pension Fund successfully. 

 

In January 2010 CIPFA launched technical guidance for Elected Representatives on s101 Pension 
Committees and non-executives in the public sector within a knowledge and skills framework. The 

framework covers six areas of knowledge identified as the core requirements:  
 

 Pensions legislative and governance context;  

 

 Pension accounting and auditing standards;  

 

 Financial services procurement and relationship development;  
 

 Investment performance and risk management;  

 

 Financial markets and products knowledge; and  
 

 Actuarial methods, standards and practice.  

 
The Knowledge and Skills Framework sets the skills required for those responsible for pension scheme 

financial management and decision making under each of the above areas in relation to 

understanding and awareness of regulations, workings and risk in managing LGPS funds. 
 

In addition, in late 2019 the Scheme Advisory Board for England and Wales began a review of 
governance arrangements for LGPS funds. This project – termed ‘Good Governance’ – addressed 

stakeholder knowledge and skills. A clear recommendation of the Good Governance project is that the 

knowledge levels already statutorily required of Board members should also be required of Committee 
members. These recent events have reaffirmed that LGPS funds should evidence the training 

provided and current knowledge and understanding levels retained within their Committee and Board. 
 

2. Approach to Training 

 
The Funds approach to training will be supportive with the intention of providing pension fund 

committee members, pension board members and officers with regular sessions that will contribute to 
their level of skills and knowledge.  

 
The Fund objectives relating to knowledge and skills are to:  

 

 ensure the Fund is managed and its services delivered by people who have the appropriate 

knowledge and expertise;  

 ensure the Fund is effectively governed and administered;  Page 36

Agenda Item 8



 ensure decisions are robust, are well founded and comply with regulatory requirements or 

guidance from the Pensions Regulator, the Scheme Advisory Board and the Secretary of State 

for Communities and Local Government.  
 

To achieve these objectives members of the Board require an understanding of:  
 

 their responsibilities as delegated to them by Gwynedd Council as an administering authority 

of an LGPS fund;  

 the fundamental requirements relating to pension fund investments;  

 the operation and administration of the Fund;  

 the principles involved in controlling and monitoring the funding level; and  

 effective decision making in the management of the Fund.  
 

3. National Knowledge Assessment 

In order to assess the curent knowledge level the fund recently took part in Hymans Robertson’s 

National Knowledge Assessment. 

The Assessment took form of a challenging multiple-choice assessment of participants knowledge and 

understanding of relevant subject areas. There was no expectation that participants would score 
100% on each subject area tested. Rather the goal was to gain a true insight into members’ 

knowledge in the areas covered by the CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework and the Pensions 
Regulator’s (TPR) Code of Practice 14. 

 

Results 
 

The Board’s average score for this assessment was 66.67%. The following graph shows the 
breakdown of the results:  

 

Sections on Financial markets and the Committee’s role & legislation were the highest scoring areas 

for the Board. Governance was also answered strongly which is encouraging given the responsibility 

of the Board. 

It does appear that the Board’s knowledge in the other areas is generally good, although actuarial 

methods and pension administration would be the key areas to focus on.  

The chart below shows how the Board scored in each section, versus the national average of all 

Board members who took part. 

Page 37



 

Engagement 

One of the key areas that Hymans Robertson recommend funds focus on is Committee and Board 

engagement. With the ever-increasing pace of change in the pensions and investments world, 

member engagement is critical to maintaining strong collective knowledge. There is an expectation 

that they need to be not only willing, but keen to develop their knowledge and understanding across 

the raft of topics upon which they will need to make, or ratify, decisions. 

The chart below shows how our Fund’s participation level compares with that of all other funds who 

took part. As you can see our Fund was the most engaged in relation to the completion of the 

assessment (100% of the Board took part). 

 

Training Feedback 

One of the final sections of the survey asked participants to indicate which topics they would like 

training on. The table below summarises the areas in which members indicated which training would 

be beneficial:  

Page 38



 

From this table, the topics most requested by the Board were: 

 Good Governance 

 Investment Performance and Risk Management 

 Pension Governance 

 Section 13 

 Best practice Pension Administration 

 Pensions Accounting and Audit Standards 

As a result of the assessment, Hymans suggests the following Training Plan: 

 

4. Delivery of training 

Consideration will be given to various training resources available in delivering training to the Board. 

These include: 

 In-house training 

 Self-improvement and familiarisation with regulations and documents 

 The Pension Regulator’s e-learning programme 

 Attending courses, seminars and external events 

 Shared training with the Wales Pension Partnership (WPP) 

 Regular updates from officers and/or advisers 

 Circulated reading material 

 Hymans Robertson’s Online training 

It is likely that most aspects of training will be delivered on a group basis, either at Committee and 

Board or through separate events to which all members will have the opportunity to attend. 

In-house training 
 

Training on specific issues, in particular on the administration of the fund, can be offered by the 

Fund’s officers. These can be arranged for the whole Board or on a one to one basis. 
Topics that can be covered include: 

 Page 39



 Calculation of benefits 

 Early leavers 

 Dependant benefits 

 Transfer of pension benefits 

 Improving benefits 

 

There is also a wealth of information available on the fund’s website: 
www.gwyneddpensionfund.wales as well as the national member’s website: www.lgpsmember.org  

 
The scheme has also produced a range of scheme literature that is available online or in paper 

format. 

 
Self-improvement and familiarisation with regulations and documents 

 
The Local Government Association (LGA) provides pensions information on the Local Government 

Pension Scheme (LGPS). 
 

They have a website which has all the technical and legal information about the LGPS 2014 for 

Employers and Administering Authorities. The site also contains the Scheme Regulations and all 
supplementary guidance. 

 
Please visit the LGA website to access all this information. 

 

The Pension Regulator’s e-learning programme 
 

The Regulator has developed an on line tool designed to help those running public service schemes to 
understand the governance and administration requirements in the public service schemes code of 

practice. The toolkit is mainly designed for Pension Board members, but it equally as useful as a 

training aid for Pension Committee members as well. 
 

This training will enable board members to meet the minimum level of knowledge and understanding 
introduced in the Pensions Act 2004. 

 
The toolkit included nine Essential Learning for Trustee compulsory modules and seven Public Sector 

toolkit compulsory learning modules. 

 
The nine Essential Learning for Trustees compulsory models test member knowledge in the following 

areas: 
 

 Introducing pension schemes 

 The trustee’s role 

 Running a scheme 

 An introduction to investment 

 How a defined benefit scheme works 

 Funding your defined benefit scheme 

 Defined benefit recovery plans. Contributions and funding principles 

 Investment in a defined benefit scheme 

 

The seven Public Sector Toolkit compulsory modules test Pension Board member knowledge in the 
following key areas: 

 

 Conflicts of Interest 

 Managing Risk and internal controls 

 Maintaining accurate member data 

 Maintaining member contributions 

 Providing information to members and others 

 Resolving internal disputes 

 Reporting breaches of the law 
 

The Pension Regulator’s toolkit programme is designed to enable you to dip in and out of the content, 
and learn at your own pace. All of the learning is downloadable, which means that you can also study 

offline. 

 
Each course features a variety of activities to suit the way you want to learn. This includes: 

Page 40

http://www.gwyneddpensionfund.wales/
http://www.lgpsmember.org/
http://www.lgpsregs.org/


 

 an e-learning module which includes a technical tutorial and a case study 

 an assessment to test your knowledge. 

 a check your scheme worksheet to help you apply the learning to your own scheme 

 exercises which you can complete individually or as a group to test your knowledge or the 

scheme’s processes 

 examples and extra resources to bring the learning to life 
 

It is estimate that each course will take one hour to complete. 
 

The Public Service toolkit enables you to print or save a development record which proves your 

achievements in the programme. 
 

Each course features an online assessment and for each one you pass your development record will 
be updated with your score. The development record can be downloaded at any time and as new 

modules are added you will be able to pass these and add them to your record too. 
 

More information can be found on the following page: 

 
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/public-service-pension-schemes 

 
Set up your own account on the following website: 

 

https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/ 
 

Attending courses, seminars and external events 
 

Attendance at seminars and conferences offered by industry-wide bodies, such as those organised by 

the LGA, LGC Pension Investment Seminars, CIPFA, Local Authority Pension Fund Forum or PLSA. 
 

As an example, the training offered by the LGA include: 
 

 an annual LGPS governance conference – aimed at elected members and others 

who attend pension committees and local pension boards e.g. employer representatives, 
trade union and other member representatives, as well as officers. 

 

 fundamentals training – an A-Z bespoke LGPS training course aimed at elected members 

and others who attend pension committees and local pension boards. The course runs from 
October to December each year, in Cardiff, Leeds and London. It provides members of 

pension committees and local pension boards with the knowledge and skills to enable them 
to carry out their duties effectively. 

 

Currently most of these session are taking place virtually, but hopefully in the future there will be the 
opportunity to attend these events in person. 

 
Shared training with the Wales Pension Partnership 

 

The Welsh Pension Partnership (WPP) has released the following Training Plan for 2020/21 and Board 

members are welcome to attend all sessions. 

Topic Presenter / Training Host Date 

Monitoring 

Managing Conflict of Interest Hymans Robertson Q1 April – June 2020 

Operator Monitoring Hymans Robertson 

Performance metrics (including 

RI metrics) 

Link / Russell Investments / 

Investment Managers & 

Hymans Robertson 

Market Understanding 

Progress of other LGPS pools Hymans Robertson & External 

Parties 

Q2 July – September 2020 

Collaboration Opportunities Hymans Robertson & External 

Parties 

Climate Risk Hymans Roberton 

Page 41

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/public-service-pension-schemes
https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/


Assets Classes - Alternatives Link / Russell Investments / 

Investment Managers & 
Hymans Robertson 

Review Process 

Decision Logging Host Authority & Hymans 

Robertson 

Q3 October – December 2020 

Identifying lessons to be learnt Host Authority & Hymans 

Robertson 

Regulatory Requirements 

Transparency Requirements Hymans Robertson & External 

Parties 

Q4 – January – March 2021 

Enacting guidance and 
regulation 

Hymans Robertson 

 

The following session has been organised, and an invitation has been sent to all Board members: 

24/02/2021:  

 

 Review Process 

 Regulatory Requirements 
 

Regular updates from officers and/or advisers 
 

Training and updates at meetings (e.g. committee or pension board) can be provided by officers 
and/or external advisers. 

 

Circulated reading material 
 

Monthly bulletins are prepared by the Local Government Association (LGA). Bulletins contains 
important updates for administering authorities, scheme employers and software suppliers. It also 

provides a general update for all L G P S stakeholders. 

 
It is proposed that these monthly bulletins are e-mailed to members of the Pension Board.  

 
Historic bulletins can be found through the following link: 

http://www.lgpsregs.org/bulletinsetc/bulletins.php  
 

Other relevant reading material can also be sent by e-mail to members. 

 
Hymans Robertson’s Online training 

 
Hymans Robertson are currently in the process of developing an online training course for Committee 

and Board members that covers all the key areas that members need to understand in order to 

successfully manage the running of a fund, including: 
 

 An introduction to LGPS oversight bodies, governance, legislation and guidance 

 LGPS administration, including policies and procedures, pension fund auditing and accounting 

 LGPS valuations, funding strategy and LGPS employers 

 Investment strategy, pooling and responsible investment 

 Performance monitoring and procurement 

 Current issues in the LGPS 

  

It is likely that this training will be in the form of short and engaging 10 to 20 minute videos with 
extra learning materials also being provided. 

 

 

Page 42

http://www.lgpsregs.org/bulletinsetc/bulletins.php


1

LGPS  
National Knowledge 
Assessment 

National Report 2020

In this report:
Executive summary   2
Thoughts from England and 
Wales Scheme Advisory Board  3 
Introduction    4
The Results    5
Engagement    11
Insight into the questions   13
Training feedback from participants 15
Conclusion    17
Appendix - Methodology   18

Page 44



2     LGPS National Knowledge Assessment

Executive summary

            - Benjamin Franklin

Pension Committees and Pension Boards in the LGPS have 
a significant responsibility. Acquiring, developing and 
maintaining a good level of knowledge is key to carrying 
out their role effectively and ensuring the successful 
running of their fund. The push for higher levels of 
knowledge and understanding in LGPS Committees and 
Pension Boards has two fundamental aims – 

 Informed decision making 

 Informed scrutiny

The goal of the National Knowledge Assessment (NKA) is 
to present participating LGPS funds with an insight into the 
level of knowledge of their Committee and Pension Board 
members, both individually and as collective groups.  

We’re pleased to share the results of the first ever National 
Knowledge Assessment.

Our key findings
• Traditional topics are still dominating - there are  
 higher levels of knowledge in the traditional Committee  
 and Pension Board topics of Investment and Financial  
 Markets and lower knowledge levels on topics such as  
 Administration and Actuarial Methods, Standards and  
 Processes. A similar theme was found in the 2018   
 National Confidence Assessment.

• Training engagement will come from varied and  
 topical training subjects – respondents to the   
 assessment suggested that they would like more   
 frequent training across a wide range of subjects   
 – training needs to be kept topical and interesting!

• Different knowledge levels at funds but crucially a  
 good spread of knowledge – funds did find a   
 fluctuation in knowledge levels of participants - as they  
 may have expected.  Crucially though there is a good  
 spread of knowledge on most topics which allows  
 funds to evidence that appropriate challenge and  
 decision making exists at their fund.

What should funds do next?

 Ensure they have assessed the current knowledge  
 levels of their Committee and Pension Board

  Use the results to identify weaker areas of   
 knowledge 

 Produce a training plan to improve on these areas  
 and track and record Committee and Pension  
 Board training

We hope you find this report insightful. If you would like to 
discuss any of our findings further, please do get in touch.

An investment in knowledge 
pays the best interest

1

2

2

3

1

Catherine McFadyen
Head of LGPS Consulting
0141 566 7784
catherine.mcfadyen@hymans.co.uk

Ian Colvin
Head of LGPS Benefit Consulting
0141 566 7923
ian.colvin@hymans.co.uk 

Andrew McKerns
Governance & Administration Consultant
0141 566 7579
andrew.mckerns@hymans.co.uk 

Page 45



3

Thoughts from England and 
Wales Scheme Advisory Board
 A body charged with the administration for  
 definite purposes of funds contributed in  
 whole or in part by persons other than the  
 members of that body, owes a duty to   
 those latter persons to conduct that   
 administration in a fairly business-like   
 manner with reasonable care, skill and   
 caution 

These words taken from the iconic case of Roberts v 
Hopwood are often cited to describe the duty owed by 
councils to the beneficiaries of their decisions. Although 
the fiduciary duty owed by decision makers in the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is an issue we and 
others are still wrestling with, we can take from this case 
the clear requirement for decisions to be made with care, 
skill and caution. It is difficult to envisage this being 
possible if those responsible for taking such decisions do 
not themselves possess, or have access to, the necessary 
knowledge of the environment in which they operate.  

As Chair of the Scheme’s advisory board I welcome the 
work that has been undertaken to assess the level of 
knowledge of both LGPS pension committees and local 
pension boards as a follow up to the 2018 assessment of 
confidence. The findings of these national assessments 
will contribute significantly to the Board’s Good 
Governance project, in particular how we can assist both 
committees and boards in matching the standards 
required by the Pensions Regulator.  

Readers will of course reach their own conclusion on what 
the national confidence and knowledge assessments say 
about the effectiveness of LGPS pension committees and 
local pension boards but for me there are several aspects 
that deserves further consideration.

Firstly, the findings appear to suggest that pension 
committees still tend to be investment-centric, which is 
understandable given the significant assets in the scheme. 
However, that leaves less time and focus for the equally 
important areas of scheme administration and governance, 
especially when scheme changes such as McCloud are on 
the horizon. I fully recognise that in many cases 

administering authorities make full use of their pensions 
board in these areas or have established separate advisory 
groups or sub-committees to focus on these issues. 
Where this is the case, proper engagement between 
committees and these bodies will be paramount. On the 
plus side, I am pleased to see that on training requirements, 
governance and administration score very highly. 

Secondly, it is noticeable that in most of the eight sections 
of work explored, the level of confidence exceeds the 
level of knowledge for members of both pension 
committees and local pension boards. Again, this is 
understandable given the ‘collective knowledge’ provided 
through the support of both officers and advisors, 
however, care should perhaps be taken to ensure that such 
support is not taken for granted or maybe relied on a little 
too heavily. To that end, the good governance project will 
be seeking to assist administering authorities in evidencing 
how this collective knowledge is both achieved and 
maintained. 

Finally, we shouldn’t forget that the acquisition of 
knowledge and understanding is a statutory requirement 
for members of local pension boards but not for members 
of pension committees. I therefore take a considerable 
amount of comfort in the outcome that there is no 
significant difference between the knowledge of pension 
committee and local pension board members across the 
eight sections of work explored in both assessments.  

To conclude, we are reaching a critical stage under the 
good governance project where aims and aspirations are 
developing into practical and real world changes to   
improve the governance and administration of the scheme 
on a consistent and measured basis that will match the 
standards expected by The Pensions Regulator. The 
results of the national assessment on both confidence and 
knowledge will greatly assist the good governance 
implementation group in making their final 
recommendations to the scheme advisory board.  

Councillor Roger Phillips
Chair of the Scheme Advisory Board 
(England and Wales)

Page 46



4     LGPS National Knowledge Assessment

Introduction
Following the success of the 2018 LGPS National 
Confidence Assessment, the 2020 LGPS National 
Knowledge Assessment takes the next step in our journey 
towards understanding and developing knowledge levels 
in the LGPS. 

The NKA aims to provide LGPS funds, and other 
stakeholders, with an insight into the pensions-specific 
knowledge and understanding of the people who hold 
decision making and oversight responsibility at LGPS 
funds. It is a key barometer for the knowledge levels across 
the 8 topics of the CIPFA Knowledge and skills framework. 
This assessment allows funds to provide targeted training 
to help develop the knowledge of Committee and Board 
members, who play such a vital role within the LGPS.

Participation
Having assessed over 225 members participating across 
20 LGPS funds, the NKA provides a clear indication and 
insight of national knowledge levels for the decision 
makers within the LGPS.

The breakdown on participants as at June 2020 is shown 
below.

Measuring engagement
The world of pensions and investments is continually 
evolving. Engagement is vital for effective informed 
decision making and maintaining strong collective 
knowledge within both groups. 

As part of the assessment, we provided participating 
funds with a benchmark position on the level of 
engagement from both their Committee and Pension 
Board. This is a crucial insight for funds as a strong set of 
results based only on the knowledge performance of a 
small number of participants would not tell the full story.  
Understanding your engagement levels in comparison to 
your peers helps to round that insight. 

This assessment was taken in participants own time. We’re 
delighted that over 60% of those eligible to respond chose 
to do so.

Why does good knowledge matter? 
In recent years, a number of events have seen a marked 
increase in the scrutiny of public service pension schemes, 
including the 100 regional funds that make up the LGPS 
across the UK. The below are the ‘roots’ for the National 
Knowledge Assessment:

•    TPR – Pension Board knowledge requirements

•    MIFID II – evidence from Committee training

•    TPR 21st Century Trustee campaign – applicable 
       to LGPS

•    Hymans National Confidence Assessment 2018

•    SAB (E&W only) Good Governance project

These recent events have reaffirmed that LGPS funds 
should evidence the training provided and current 
knowledge and understanding levels retained within their 
Committee and Board. 

 Chair Member Total
Committee 12 118 130

Board 18 78 96

Page 47



5

The results

71%

67% 68% 83% 53%

1. Committee Role and 
Pensions Legislation

5. Procurement and 
Relationship 
Management

6. Investment 
Performance and Risk 

Management

7. Financial markets and 
product knowledge

8. Actuarial methods, 
standards and practices

2. Pensions Governance
3. Pensions 

Administration
4. Pensions Accounting 

and Audit Standards

69% 59% 68%

Firstly, we look at the overall scores from the assessment, 
based on the sections used to group the individual 
questions. 

We also made a comparison between the results from the 
National Confidence Assessment and National 
Knowledge Assessment.

We then analysed the results further to summarise the 
results of various sub-groups including:

 • Board vs Committee

 • Chair vs Members

 • Tenure

 • Highest and lowest answered questions

 • Insight into engagement levels at funds

 • Collective knowledge across a participant fund

 • Engagement levels

 • Training topic feedback

An overview
The responses for all members who participated have 
been collated and analysed. The first set of results show 
the average participant score across all 8 sections. 

The highest scoring section is Financial Markets and 
Product Knowledge, with an average score of 83% – 
scoring well above all other areas in the assessment. The 
lowest scoring sections are Actuarial Methods, Standards 
and Processes (53%), followed by Pensions Administration 
(59%). 

It’s interesting that the highest scoring sections are 
probably those that are considered the more traditional 
areas which Boards and Committees might focus on. The 
lowest scoring sections would typically have less time 
spent on them at Committee and Board meetings. That’s 
not to say these sections are any less important, it simply 
reflects our experience of the coverage of these sections 
on meeting agendas. 

This in itself poses a challenge. It’s easy to see why 
knowledge levels might be lower if they have less time 
dedicated to them on meeting agendas. To address this 
issue, it requires a concerted effort to develop knowledge 
in these areas.  

Page 48



6     LGPS National Knowledge Assessment

Confidence vs Knowledge
So, how do the NKA results compare to those from our National Confidence Assessment 
(NCA) in 2018? 

The NCA asked members to gauge how confident they were in the same 8 topics covered 
in the NKA. The chart below shows the comparison between confidence and knowledge. 

The NCA score reflects the percentage of responses answered with either “mostly 
confident” or “completely confident” to questions under each section. 

The NKA score reflects the average number of questions answered correctly in 
each section. 

Confidence vs Knowledge

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Committee role and pensions legislation

Pensions Governance

Pensions Administration

Pensions Accounting and audit  standards

Procurement and relationship management

Investment performance and risk management

Financial markets and product knowledge

Actuarial methods, standards and practies

ScoreNKA
NCA

It should be noted that the NCA questions were 
subjective, with members asked to rate their confidence in 
the subject areas from very confident to not at all 
confident. There is no direct quantitative comparison 
between the 2 surveys, rather it is the gap between levels 
of knowledge and confidence in each subject area that is 
most relevant.

The confidence in Financial Markets is borne out in 
practice based on the NKA results. The biggest 
discrepancy between confidence and knowledge is for 
Actuarial Methods, Standards and Practices – the lowest 
scoring area overall. This suggests members felt confident 
in this subject area, but when tested with questions on the 
topic, they did not perform as well as expected. It may 
also suggest that NCA respondents were confident on the 
8 areas due to advice from Officers and Advisers.

Score

Members were most confident in the role of the 
Committee and Pensions Legislation, and this is reflected 
in the results of the NKA with this topic scoring second 
highest but lagging some way behind Financial Markets and 
Product Knowledge.  

Page 49



7

Board vs Committee
We have also compared the results of the Committee and the Boards to see if there is any 
pattern of results. The results indicate that the overall knowledge levels of the Board are 
marginally higher than those of the Committee, although this varies by section.

Board vs Committee

Committee
Local Pension Board

Section

6767

57

68 70

83

53

66
73

62
68

64

83

52

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Procurement and
Relationship
Management

Pensions
Governance

Pensions
Administration

Pensions Accounting
and Audit Standards

Investment
Performance and
Risk Management

Financial Markets 
and Product 
Knowledge

Actuarial Methods, 
Standards and 

Practices

Committee
Average

Score
66.48

Board
Average
Score
68.0467

76

Committee Role 
and Pensions 

Legislation

It’s interesting that the Board have higher average scores in 
the sections on Committee Role and Pension Legislation, 
as well as Pensions Governance. This is not altogether 
unexpected, given the Board’s oversight role. The 
Committee members’ area of outperformance against the 
Board relates to investment performance. Again, this is not 
unexpected given the typical roles of both bodies.  

The Board and Committee scored similarly in all other 
areas. As there is no current statutory requirement for 
Committees to attain a certain level of knowledge, it is 
encouraging that there is not a vast difference between 
them and the Pension Board who do have that 
requirement.

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 (%

)

Page 50



8     LGPS National Knowledge Assessment

Members vs Chairs
As well as looking at the Committee scores and Board scores together, we have compared 
the results of the Chairs versus members. The Chair results reflect the results of both 
Committee and Board, against the remaining members of the Committees and Boards.

The knowledge levels of the Chairs are greater than that of 
the members on almost every topic. This is as you might 
expect given these roles are typically taken by individuals 
with experience of serving on the Committee / Board and 
often bring with them external experience relevant to the 
role.  
 
 The average score for members is 66% and   
 for Chairs, 73%.

Chairs outperform the members in all but one section – 
that of Procurement and relationship management. 

There are some distinct differences in the scores of some 
sections with the Chairs outperforming most in 
governance and administration. As a key driving force for 
raising standards at individual funds, these Chair results are 
very encouraging as the LGPS continues that push.

Members vs Chairs

Section Names

70 68

57

67
67

67

83

52

78 81

71
75

66
69

85

57

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Procurement and
Relationship
Management

Pensions
Governance

Pensions
Administration

Pensions Accounting
and Audit Standards

Investment
Performance and
Risk Management

Financial Markets 
and Product 
Knowledge

Committee Role 
and Pensions 

Legislation

Actuarial Methods, 
Standards and 

Practices

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 (%

)

Chair
Member

Section

Page 51



9

Tenure
When completing the survey, we asked members to indicate the amount of time they had 
spent in their role. We have used tenure to gauge whether the time spent on a Committee 
and/or Board is reflected by the level of knowledge a member has. You would perhaps 
expect that those who serve longer have more knowledge in certain areas – this is clearly a 
generalisation but is supported by the results. 

Of those who participated, around 4 years is the average 
length of service on the Committee/Board. We have used 
this to analyse the results based on tenure. The chart 
above shows the results of those who have a tenure of 3 
years or less versus those 4 years or more. 

As you might expect, the scores are higher for those with 
longer service on the respective Committee or Board. This 
will most likely reflect experience these members have 
had tackling the relevant issues as well as training sessions 
they have attended. The only section where those with a 
shorter tenure outperformed was in Procurement and 
Relationship Management. 

There is not a huge divergence in the scores when using 
tenure as a marker. This probably reflects the fact that the 
Committee and Board members have a variety of 
backgrounds and working experiences. Background and 
experience will, of course, have an impact on a member’s 
knowledge levels. 

Average Score by Tenure

3 years and under
4 years and over

Section

6767

57
65

83

50

66
73 71

83

55

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

3 years
and under

65.71

Average Score
4 years
and over
69.08

67 68

Procurement and
Relationship
Management

Pensions
Governance

Pensions
Administration

Pensions Accounting
and Audit Standards

Investment
Performance and
Risk Management

Financial Markets 
and Product 
Knowledge

Actuarial Methods, 
Standards and 

Practices

63
69

74

Committee Role 
and Pensions 

Legislation

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 (%

)

Page 52



10     LGPS National Knowledge Assessment

Spread of knowledge 

The above chart highlights the spread of knowledge at a 
typical participating fund. Taken on its own, you may draw 
the conclusion that an area like Pension Administration will 
not be appropriately scrutinised at this Fund. However, as 
highlighted within the Good Governance project, decision 
making and scrutiny relies on both the collective 
knowledge of your decision makers and also on individual 
skills and knowledge levels within your Committee and 
Pension Board teams.

We recommend that funds continue to improve their 
overall scores in all areas, but they should also be 
encouraged to provide evidence that appropriate decision 
making, and scrutiny can be provided by at least some of 
their ‘team’, if not every member.

Commentary on results
We would fully expect there to be gaps in the 
knowledge of all members, no matter their role on the 
Committee or Pension Board, their tenure or indeed 
their background in terms of pensions experience.  

The most important thing to emphasise is that not 
everybody needs to be an expert in all areas, rather 
there should be a spread of knowledge across LGPS 
Committees and Pension Boards which is supported 
by advice from officers and professional advisors.  
This will help ensure informed decision making and 
informed scrutiny takes place up and down the LGPS 
land. 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

Financial Markets and Product Knowledge

Pensions Accounting and Audit Standards

Committee Role and Pensions Legislation

Procurement and Relationship Management

Pensions Administration

Investment Performance and Risk Management

Pensions Governance

Actuarial Methods, Standards and Practices

Page 53



11

Engagement
One of the key outcomes from this assessment is being 
able to gauge the level of engagement of Committee and 
Board members, both at local fund level, but crucially at a 
national level as well.

It’s very encouraging that 20 Funds signed up to participate 
in this assessment. However, what is most reassuring, is the 
level of uptake within those funds. The average 
participation level – the number of participants as a 
proportion of those eligible to participate – was over 60%. 
Given the current circumstances of home-working, this is a 
good result. 

Engagement - Pension Board Engagement - Pension Committee

Non- 
participants

Non- 
participants

Participants Participants
67% 58%

33% 42%

The diagrams below show the breakdown of the total 
number of Committee and Board participants nationally, as 
a proportion of those who could have responded from the 
participating funds.

Members should not only be willing, but keen to develop 
their knowledge and understanding across the raft of 
topics upon which they will need to make, or oversee, 
decisions. Regardless of tenure, past experience or current 
knowledge levels, the landscape and Regulations of the 
LGPS changes so quickly (and often) that developing and 
enhancing knowledge is a continual part of their role.

Page 54



12     LGPS National Knowledge Assessment

Fund-level engagement
The following anonymised chart shows the breakdown of 
participation at fund-level. 

We understand that different Committees function in 
different ways and have different numbers of members. 
We therefore draw no conclusions or make any inferences 
about specific funds from these results. The information is 
simply useful to demonstrate the wide differences in 
engagement between funds who participated. 

With one fifth of the LGPS participating, we feel this can be 
extrapolated across all funds and suggests that there is 
great disparity with regards to engagement levels. 

The decision making and scrutiny processes will be 
performed best by Committees and Boards which are 
fully engaged in their roles. 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Keep training sessions varied, topical and   
interesting 

Where possible, training sessions should be 
short and interactive – it’s hard to maintain 
focus and energy levels within long training 
sessions

Introduce options for members to learn within 
their own time and without needing to be at a 
specific physical location

Have a clear training plan for the group and, 
where required, for individuals who require 
more training 

If face to face training is required, ensure that 
the format is split between a presentation and 
a question and answer session

How to improve engagement levels

Participation Level

In
di

vi
du

al
 F

un
ds

2

3

4

5

1

Page 55



13

Insight into the questions

7.3 3.4

5.6

A A

A

B B

B

C C

C

D D

D

Highest scoring questions
We have picked out the top 3 questions in terms of correct 
answers from participants: 

 

These 3 questions with most correct answers were 
spread over 3 different topics. In each case they were 
answered correctly by more than 90% of respondents.

By lending money to companies or to Government 
you would be investing in which asset class?

Which of the following is not one of The Pensions 
Regulator’s measures of good practice set out in its 
code of practice 14?

How should the Fund ensure the services it receives 
are satisfactory?

Bonds Appropriate knowledge and understanding

Receive annual reports from providers on the services 
provided 

Equities Providing high quality information to members 

Review at the end of the contract term 

Property Strong internal controls and good data and record 
keeping

Have in place a contract management regime with 
regular reporting and challenge of provider performance

Cash Maximising investment returns 

Annual customer surveys

Page 56



14     LGPS National Knowledge Assessment

Lowest scoring questions
Similarly, we have picked out the 4 questions (8.2 and 8.3 
had identical average scores) which were answered most 
poorly overall:

5.1 8.2

3.2 8.3

A A

A A

B B

B B

C C

C C

D D

D D

These 4 questions were answered correctly by less than 
one third of respondents, with the question regarding 
procurement rules answered correctly in only 10% of 
responses. This indicates there is clearly some work 
which can be done to raise awareness of procurement 
rules and procedures.

Who in the Council is responsible for ensuring that 
procurement rules are followed?

Which of the following is not a key principle of the 
Funding Strategy Statement?

Which of the following is not a requirement but  
which a Fund may currently have in place?

An employer’s “primary rate” (expressed as a 
percentage of pensionable pay) is...?

The committee Prudent view of Fund solvency 

Funding Strategy Statement The cost of new benefits accruing to the employer’s 
active members

A specialist Procurement Officer Transparency of governance process

Governance compliance statement A standard contribution rate calculated by the 
government for the LGPS as a whole 

Relevant Director and Fund officers Adequate monitoring of Fund Manager performance

Administration strategy The cost of the pensions due to be paid out in the next 
year to the employer’s former employees

Head of HR Contribution stability

Communications policy The minimum contribution payable by the employer

Two of the bottom 4 questions relate to the section on 
Actuarial methods, standards and practices. This is not 
surprising since this topic was the lowest scoring section 
overall but provides an indication of specific areas in 
which knowledge is lacking.

Page 57



15

Training feedback from participants  
One of our key aims from conducting this assessment is to facilitate putting in place bespoke 
training plans for all participating funds. This will allow members to get the most value from their 
structured training. We provided participating funds with a focussed training guide as part of 
their individual tailored results report. We hope that funds who opted not to participate in the 
assessment will still benefit from the aggregated national results and use these as the basis of 
structuring their training plan over the coming months and indeed years.

We asked members to indicate which topics they would like to receive training on. The list of 
options available covered a broad range of topics which we believe are most relevant to allow 
Committee and Board members to effectively perform their roles. 

The table below summarises the areas in which members indicated training would be beneficial.

McCloud
The impact of the McCloud ruling is the single most 
requested training topic. As this is such an important 
current development in the LGPS, it’s perhaps 
unsurprising. The fact that nearly half of all participants 
specifically requested training on this issue highlights 
the lack of confidence and understanding of the issue. 
We recommend that each fund has a McCloud section 
at their next Committee or Pension Board meeting if 
they have not already done so.

Committees could well be asked to approve project 
plans and measures put in place by the funds’ officers 
to deal with the McCloud issues. Pension Boards will 
need to have oversight of this and sufficient knowledge 
to be able to scrutinise the decisions taken. It is 
apparent that a proportion of Committee and Board 
members do not feel equipped to do so currently, and 
that they would value further training.

Governance 
Governance also features heavily in terms of 
requested training topics. Three of the top five topics 
requested concern governance. This has been a 
topical area in the LGPS over the past few years, and 
one which is quite rightly at the forefront of members’ 
minds. That these topics have been requested by 
such numbers, suggests there is not only a desire, but 
a need, for further training in these areas.  

I don't require further training
Illiquid asset training

Pensions Accounting and Audit Standards
Procurement and Relationship Management

Pensions Administration
Cost transparency

Financial Markets and Product Knowledge
Actuarial Methods, Standards and Practices

Exit Credits
Best practice Pension Administration

Section 13
Good Governance

Investment Performance and Risk Management
Environmental, Social and Governance

Committee Role and Pensions Legislation
Pensions Governance

McCloud impacts

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

Page 58



16     LGPS National Knowledge Assessment

Training support
Tools such as this online assessment offer different ways for members to take part in training. 
We have noted some training materials and websites below which might help you deliver 
focussed sessions to your Committee and Board and keep them informed on the most 
pertinent pension areas.

• CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework

• TPR Public Service Toolkit

• LGA fundamental training 

• LGA monthly bulletins

• Hymans Robertson Training videos for Committee and Board members (more info below)

Hymans Robertson’s Online training for Pension 
Committee and Local Pension Board members
We recognise that it’s difficult to cover the extensive 
training requirements at quarterly meetings and 
understand elected members have limited time to 
dedicate to long training sessions outside of these 
meetings. That’s why we’re developing an online course to 
make it easier for members to obtain the knowledge they 
require, in a more efficient and engaging way.

Our online training course for Committee and Board 
members covers all the key areas that members need to 
understand in order to successfully manage the running of 
a fund, including:

  An introduction to LGPS oversight bodies,  
  governance, legislation and guidance

  LGPS administration, including policies and  
  procedures, pension fund auditing and  
  accounting

  LGPS valuations, funding strategy and LGPS  
  employers

  Investment strategy, pooling and   
  responsible investment

  Performance monitoring and procurement

  Current issues in the LGPS 

The benefits of going online
• Short and engaging 10 to 20 minute videos with extra  
 learning materials

• Members can go at their own pace

• Regular reporting to funds on progress of their   
 members

• Funds can easily evidence their members’ knowledge  
 and skills

• Limits the need for officers to create training material

• More cost effective than delivering training in person

• New members can benefit from training without going  
 through a full cycle of meetings

2

3

4

5

6

1

Page 59

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/public-service-pension-schemes/understanding-your-role/learn-about-managing-public-service-schemes
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/workforce-and-hr-support/local-government-pensions/training-and-events/lgps-training
http://www.lgpsregs.org/bulletinsetc/bulletins.php


Pension Funds
With increasing external pressures in the LGPS, there is a greater expectation on funds to improve 
knowledge levels for their Committees and Pension Boards. This first ever LGPS National Knowledge 
Assessment has provided the starting point for funds to measure where they are now and how they can 
measure progress for both groups in the future. 

Regardless of external pressures, setting a goal to increase knowledge and understanding will provide 
strong informed decision making and informed scrutiny at each LGPS Fund. Those NKA benchmark 
numbers will be key for funds when planning future Committee and Pension Board Training.

Conclusion 

Recommendations
We recommend the following action:
• For funds that haven’t yet taken part in the National Knowledge assessment, please get in contact to discuss how  
 your Fund can still take part in this assessment and tap into this wealth of benchmarking information. It is not too  
 late for you to receive a 2020 local national report for your fund and gain a clear insight into your Committee and  
 Pension Boards current knowledge levels.

For funds that have received their reports, we 
recommend you:
• Engage with your fund’s Committee and Board   
 members to agree the topics which are most relevant  
 and create a structured training plan for the next 18  
 months, covering the main areas highlighted in this  
 report.

• Plan for the delivery of training over a 6-month period  
 while meeting restrictions might continue to be in   
 place.

• Assess the tools available to the Fund to assist with  
 training.

• Consider ways of maintaining and increasing the   
 engagement of both the Board and Committee. This  
 could include providing them with more information,  
 training materials, briefing notes etc. 

• Ensure that the fund’s training strategy is up to date  
 and appropriate for purpose.

• Keep a training log showing attendance by   
 members at various training sessions, to ensure   
 members are gaining a sufficient spread of   
 knowledge.

Assessment, planning and recording of this work are key to ensuring your fund progresses and meets both the 
external and your own internal expectations of an informed Committee and Pension Board now and in the future.

We thank each fund and every participant for taking part in the 2020 National Knowledge Assessment – we look 
forward to working with you in assessing and measuring your progress in the years to come! 

Page 60



18     LGPS National Knowledge Assessment

Approach
Participants were invited to complete the same set of 47 
questions on the 8 areas below:

Under each subject heading, there were at least 5 multiple 
choice questions to answer. Each question had 4 possible 
answers, of which one answer was correct. This allows us 
to build a picture of the knowledge levels of each 
individual member in each of the topics, but crucially to 
help inform you of the overall levels of knowledge in each 
area.

Appendix – Methodology 

The subject areas exactly mirror those that were used in 
the National Confidence Assessment in 2018. This allows a 
comparison to be made between the confidence 
members have in these areas and the knowledge they 
exhibit through participating in the NKA.

Hymans Robertson LLP (registered in England and Wales - One London Wall, London EC2Y 5EA - OC310282) is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and licensed by the Institute 
and Faculty of Actuaries for a range of investment business activities. A member of Abelica Global.    

© Hymans Robertson LLP. Hymans Robertson uses FSC approved paper. 

London  |  Birmingham  |  Glasgow  |  Edinburgh T 020 7082 6000  |   www.hymans.co.uk   |   www.clubvita.co.uk

1 Committee Role and Pensions Legislation 5 Procurement and Relationship Management

2 Pensions Governance 6 Investment Performance and Risk Management

3 Pensions Administration 7 Financial Markets and Product Knowledge

4 Pensions Accounting and Audit Standards 8 Actuarial Methods, Standards and Practices

            

      

      

An excellent initiative, 
hopefully leading to increased 
skills & knowledge.

Good test.  Should be set as a 
minimum entrance requirement 
to be member of the Pension 
Fund Committee.

Thanks. This has been very well 
put together as it tests your 
field of knowledge. It also 
shows how much is still to learn 
and to keep abreast of.

By answering these questions 
it is obvious that there is still a 
great deal to learn and I would 
be happy to take part in any 
future training courses held.

Page 61



MEETING:   PENSION BOARD 
 
DATE:    22 FEBRUARY 2021 
 
TITLE: PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION AND INVESTMENT 

SECTIONS BUDGET FOR 2021/22 
 
PURPOSE: To note the 2021/22 financial year budget for the 

Pensions Administration and Investment sections. 
 
AUTHOR:   DELYTH JONES-THOMAS, INVESTMENT MANAGER 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
  
1.1 The purpose of this report is to introduce the 2021/22 financial year budget for 

the Pensions Administration and Investment sections.  
 

1.2 The budget has been approved by the Pensions Committee on 21st January 
2021. 

 
2. PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION SECTION 

*Reversal of one day unpaid leave by the Council  
 
2.1 Employees, travel and subsistence  
 

The budget for this section consists of 18 full time posts and 1 part time post.  
 
2.2 Supplies and Services 
 

The supplies and services includes mainly printing, office materials and 
software costs.  

 
2.3 Central Services 
 

Central services comprise 20% of the Head of Finance and his ancillary staff 
costs, and support from Council services such as information technology, 
corporate and legal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Final Adjustment* Inflation Budget 

 
2020/21    2021/22 

Employees £657,900 £6,700 £6,940 £671,540 
Travel and Subsistence £1,440 £0 £0 £1,440 
Supplies and Services £248,270 £0 £3,210 £251,480 
Central Services £112,800 £0 £1,690 £114,490 

Total £1,020,410 £6,700 £11,840 £1,038,950 

Page 62

Agenda Item 9



 
3. INVESTMENT SECTION 
 

  Final Adjustment* Inflation Budget 

 
2020/21     2021/22 

Employees £111,375 £432 £1,145 £112,952 

 *Reversal of one day unpaid leave by the Council  
 
3.1 Employees 

 
This section is located within the main Central Finance department and 
therefore only an element of the posts are funded by the Pension Fund. 

 
There are 3 full time posts with officer time divided between the Gwynedd 
Pension Fund and Gwynedd Council. The following percentages of posts are 
funded by the Pension Fund: 

 Investment Manager (85%) 

 Pensions and Investment Officer (80%)  

 Pensions and Treasury Management Assistant Accountant (60%) 
 
4. FUND MANAGER AND CONSULTANCY FEES 
 
4.1 There is no budget set as the expenditure can vary significantly, but the 

expenditure is reported fully in the Fund’s financial statements and Annual 
Report.   

  
5. RECOMMENDATION 
  
5.1 The Board is asked to note the 2021/22 financial year budget for the Pensions 

Administration and Investment sections. 
 

Page 63



MEETING:   PENSION BOARD 
 
DATE:                       22 FEBRUARY 2021  
 
TITLE: SETTING OBJECTIVES FOR INVESTMENT 

CONSULTANTS 
 
PURPOSE: To report progress against current objectives  
 
AUTHOR:   DELYTH JONES-THOMAS, INVESTMENT MANAGER  

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
At the end of 2018, following a review of the investment consulting and fiduciary 
management markets, the Competition and Markets Authority (“CMA”) stipulated 
that Pension Scheme Trustees should set objectives for their investment 
consultants. 
 
The objectives were operational from 10th December 2019. 
 

2. ESTABLISHING OBJECTIVES FOR INVESTMENT CONSULTANTS 

The CMA states that objectives for consultants should include a clear definition of 
the outcome expected, and should be:  

 ‘closely linked’ to the pension scheme’s strategic objectives  

 reviewed at least every three years, and after a significant change to the 

investment strategy or objectives  

Establishing long term objectives is part of a well organised and well managed 

governance approach. The extension to set objectives for investment consultants 

could be regarded as a natural progression towards all stakeholders being aligned 

towards a common goal.  

3. GWYNEDD PENSION FUND OBJECTIVES FOR INVESTMENT CONSULTANTS 

The objectives for Gwynedd Pension Fund can be found in Appendix 1, with the 

progress reported against them during 2020. 

A compliance statement has been signed by the Pensions Committee Chairman by 

the required deadline of 7th January 2021. 

4. FUTURE OBJECTIVES  
 
The current objectives were approved by the Pensions Committee on 21st January 
2021 and will remain for the upcoming period.  
 

5. RECOMMENDATION 

The Board is asked to note the information. 

Page 64

Agenda Item 10



Consultant’s Objectives 

 

Outcome of 2020 

1.Advise on a suitable investment strategy, and 
amendments to the strategy, to deliver the 
required investment returns from the Fund’s 
investments to support progress towards a long 
term steady state of funding  

Advice has been given on the Investment Strategy 

during 2020 following the three year actuarial 

valuation. 

2.Deliver an investment approach that reflects 
the Fund’s cashflow position, and likely 
evolution, and minimises the risk of forced 
disinvestment  

 

Strategic objectives for the Fund are stated in the ISS 

and recent Actuarial Valuation confirmed current 

investment strategy provides the Fund with high 

likelihood of meeting its objectives. 

3.Advise on the cost efficient implementation of 
the Fund’s investment strategy as required, 
taking into account the evolution of the Wales 
pool (WPP).  
 

This exercise is being carried out by the Wales 

Pension Partnership. 

4. Ensure advice complies with relevant 
pensions regulations, legislation and supporting 
guidance.  
 

All arrangements remain compliant. There have been 

no recent regulatory changes that the Fund needed to 

be aware of. 

5.Develop the Committee’s policies and beliefs, 
including those in relation to Responsible 
Investment.  
 

Ongoing review of ESG policy, and potential 

broadening of the scope. Comments provided on new 

Baillie Gifford Alpha Paris Aligned and Black Rock low 

carbon fund 

6.Ensure our advice reflects the Committee’s 
own policies and beliefs, including those in 
relation to Responsible Investment 
considerations  
 

Ongoing advice has been provided on new 

investments, to ensure these are consistent with 

strategy 

7.Provide relevant and timely advice  
 

Timely advice and regular updates are given.  

 

Ongoing advice provided on transfers to WPP 

especially with the Fixed Income transfers delay.  

8.Help the Committee develop knowledge and 
understanding of investment matters  
 

Hymans have not provided any training on new asset 

classes but have done through Wales Pension 

Partnership. The fund has also taken part in the 

National Knowledge Assessment indicated the 

potential areas for future training needs.  

9. Our services to support your ongoing 
governance shall be proportionate and 
competitive in terms of costs relative to our peer 
group  
 

Hymans’ fees are in line with peer group, with fixed 

fees for certain core tasks, and time-cost fees for 

additional tasks. Large project fees are agreed in 

advanced. 

 

Page 65



MEETING:   PENSION BOARD 
 
DATE:    22 FEBRUARY 2021 
 
TITLE: RESPONSIBLE INVESTING AND LOW CARBON 

INVESTMENTS 
 
PURPOSE: To update the Board on the Fund’s activities with 

responsible investing and low carbon investments, 
and to present a draft statement 

 
AUTHOR:   DELYTH JONES-THOMAS, INVESTMENT MANAGER 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
  
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the Fund’s activities with 

responsible investments and low carbon investments, and present a draft 
statement. 

 
2. FIDICUARY DUTY 
 
2.1 We’ve recently been considering how we could invest more responsibly. As 

trustees of pension funds it is more responsible for us to plan appropriately, 
take real action, and influence where possible for the benefit of our 
environment. 
 

2.2 The Gwynedd Pension Fund has a fiduciary duty to all scheme employers, 
their staff and pensioners.  It is this 'fiduciary duty', which informs the decisions 
of the Pensions Committee.  The Fund does not divest solely for non-financial 
reasons, not least because this could lead to legal challenge. 

 
3. DEVELOPMENTS 

 
3.1 The managers and the Pensions Committee have been working for some time 

to ensure that the Gwynedd Pension Fund, our advisers and asset managers 
look to invest in sustainable assets.  We have asked our asset managers to 
engage with companies on their plans for a low carbon future.  Through this, 
the Pension Fund has put pressure on companies to increase efforts in this 
important area. 
 

3.2 The following developments have taken place in Gwynedd Pension Fund in 
order to increase efforts in this area: 

 

 Revise the Fund's Investment Strategy Statement to set out our responsible 
investment principles. 

 Developing a Responsible Investment Policy (in progress). 

 12% of the Fund’s investments have been transferred to the Black Rock low 
carbon fund. 

 Approved the movement of the Ballie Gifford within Wales Pension 
Partnership to a fund which disinvests from fuel companies. 

 Wales Pension Partnership have commissioned a ‘decarbonisation overlay’ by 
Russell Investments which will reduce carbon footprint by 25% on certain 
funds. 

Page 66

Agenda Item 11



 UBS, one of our property managers, has kept its number 1 position in its peer 
group for its ‘ESG GRESB’ score in 2020. 

 Working together with LAPFF to promote the highest standards of corporate 
governance and have a positive influence. 

 
4. STATEMENT BY THE FUND 
 
4.1 As the importance of this field has increased, we have decided to publish a 

statement (Appendix 1) which outlines the Fund’s viewpoint of divesting from 
fossil fuels. 

 
5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
 The Board is asked to note the report and the Chairman to sign the statement. 

Page 67



Gwynedd Pension Fund: Divesting from Fossil Fuels 
 

We have recently received a number of requests for an ambitious timetable for total 
de-investment of fossil fuels, but as trustees of pension funds it is more responsible 
for us to plan appropriately, take real action, and influence where possible for the 
benefit of our environment. 

 
The Gwynedd Pension Fund has a fiduciary duty to all scheme employers, their staff 
and pensioners.  It is this 'fiduciary duty', which informs the decisions of the Pensions 
Committee.  The Fund does not divest solely for non-financial reasons, not least 
because this could lead to legal challenge. 

 
The Pension Fund's assets are invested to provide financial returns to ensure the 
financial security of staff and pensioners.  Returns also reduce the cost to 
employers, which in turn reduces the cost to Council Tax payers, or avoids cutting 
local services.  This is an important social responsibility of which the Pensions 
Committee is well aware. 
 
However, managers and the Pensions Committee have been working for some time 
to ensure that the Gwynedd Pension Fund, our advisers and asset managers look to 
invest in sustainable assets.  We have asked our asset managers to engage with 
companies on their plans for a low carbon future.  Through this, the Pension Fund 
has put pressure on companies to increase efforts in this important area. 

 
The Pensions Committee, at various seminars and meetings, has regularly 
discussed environmental, social and governance ('ESG') issues.  At the November 
2018 meeting, the Pensions Committee decided to revise the Fund's Investment 
Strategy Statement to set out our responsible investment principles.  This 
Environmental, Social and Governance Policy outlines the - 

“Need to consider the specific risks arising from climate change when 
considering investments.” 

 
Further, responsible investment is an issue that is addressed at every meeting of our 
investment panel, where we discuss with companies that invest on our 
behalf.  These investment companies have ongoing plans to improve our carbon 
footprint and we are working with them and the Pensions Committee to implement 
these plans.  Current examples include: 

 

 Black Rock (12% of Gwynedd fund) - A further low carbon reservoir has been 

developed which screens fossil fuels before low carbon optimization, thus 

reducing carbon by an additional 44% (Pensions Committee decision, 14 

October 2020). 

 

 Bailie Gifford (6% of Gwynedd fund) - Part of our investment with the Wales 

Pension Partnership who have developed a fund that disinvests from fossil 

fuel extractors and fossil fuel service providers (Pensions Committee decision, 

21 January 2021). 

 

Page 68



 Global Opportunities Fund (16% of Gwynedd fund) Wales Pension 

Partnership has commissioned a 'decarbonisation overlay' by Russell 

Investments which reduces the carbon footprint by 25%. Also, it is possible 

the same 'overlay' could be implemented on our next transfer to the WPP 

emerging markets (3% of Gwynedd fund) in autumn 2021. 

 

 USB Triton –our Fund has a 10% allocation to property investments. One of 

our property managers, USB, has kept its number 1 position in its peer group 

for their ‘ESG GRESB’ score in 2020 (global benchmark for environmental, 

social and governmental factors within the property field). 

In addition to implementing these particular schemes, we will continue to invest 
responsibly by engaging with companies and our asset managers.  
 
Responsible investment is important to all LGPS funds, and we are able to work 
together through the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF).  The LAPFF 
aims to promote the highest standards of corporate governance to protect the long-
term value of local authority pension funds.  The Forum engages directly with 
hundreds of companies and their chairs.  This is done by building trust and having a 
two-way dialogue on corporate responsibility in the areas of stewardship, climate 
risk, social risk and governance risk.  We are stronger together, and because the 
LAPFF recognizes that 'climate change is a significant and urgent investment 
risk', LAPFF is a very useful forum to ensure a positive impact. 

 
Hopefully this summary will convince you that the Gwynedd Pension Fund is not 
complacent about the climate change agenda, but that the solution has to be more 
sophisticated than simple disinvestment from fossil fuels. 
 
 

 
DAFYDD L EDWARDS 
HEAD OF FINANCE 
 
 

 
CYNG. PEREDUR JENKINS 
CHAIRMAN OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
 
OSIAN RICHARDS 
CHAIRMAN OF THE PENSION BOARD 
 

Page 69



 

 

Meeting: Pension Board 

Date: 22/02/2021 

Title: Public Sector Exit Payment Regulations 2020 

Purpose: For information 

Author: Meirion Jones, Pensions Manager 

 

1. Introduction 
 
The Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2020 came into force on 4 
November 2020. The regulations have a considerable impact on public sector exit 
arrangements for those public bodies listed in the schedule to the regulations. 
 
The legislation stems from an initiative in 2015, where the then government sought to 
reduce the cost of public sector redundancy payments to the taxpayer.  
 
Please see the following link for a copy of the full regulation:  
 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2020/9780348210170/contents  
 

2. What is the public sector exit cap and who is affected? 
 
Under the cap, the Government has introduced a limit on the amount of money a public 
sector employer can pay when an employee leaves their employment.  
 
The exit cap is most likely to affect members of the Pension Fund if they are a public sector 
employee aged 55 or over and they are made redundant or they leave their employment 
due to business efficiency. This is because the amount the employer pays to the pension 
fund so that the member can receive their pension early is included in the exit cap 
calculation. 
 
For Gwynedd Pension Fund the following employer types are affected: 
 

 A community council in Wales established under Part II of the Local Government Act 
1972 

 A county and county borough council established under section 20 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 

 A National Park Authority established by an order under section 63 of the 
Environment Act 1995 / National Park Authorities (Wales) Order 

 Careers Choices Dewis Gyrfa Limited (Trading as Careers Wales) 
 
The employer can apply to the Government for the cap not to apply in some limited 
circumstances such as genuine hardship. For Welsh employer, the circumstances for the cap 

Page 70

Agenda Item 12

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2020/9780348210170/contents


not to apply may be different. The Welsh Government is working on this at the moment - 
further information will follow. 
 

3. Why has the exit cap been introduced? 
 
The Government is concerned about the number and the amount of exit payments made to 
public sector workers. The exit cap, as well as other planned changes, are meant to ensure 
better use of public money and ensure that workers across the public sector are treated in a 
similar way. 
 

4. How much is the exit cap and what payments are included in the 
calculation of the exit cap? 

 
The exit payment cap is set at a total of £95,000 which will not be index-linked. Exit 
payments include: 
 

 Redundancy/severance payments (including statutory redundancy payments) 
 pension strain costs that arise when an LGPS pension is paid unreduced before a 

member’s normal pension age, and 
 other payments made as a result of termination of employment. 

 
Any lump sum paid to a member from the pension fund, sometimes referred to as a 
retirement grant, does not count towards the calculation of the exit cap. 
 

5. Further Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG) 
reforms 

 
In addition to the exit cap, MHCLG have proposed further reforms.  
 
On 7 September 2020, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) published a consultation on restricting exit payments in local government in 
England and Wales. This consultation has wider implications than the £95k cap and draft 
regulations have been published as part of the consultation. These proposals will affect all 
local government workers and propose to change the automatic entitlement to unreduced 
pension benefits for those over age 55 who leave the scheme at the request of their 
employer because of redundancy/efficiency. The exit payment reform consultation closed for 
responses on 9 November 2020. 
 
It was hoped that the exit cap  and MHCLG reforms would have come into force together, 
however we are currently still waiting for the MHCLG reform to go through Parliament.  
 
The MHCLG proposals will limit the payments made to, or in relation to, employees of the 
relevant employers’ in addition to statutory entitlement as follows: 
 

 The actual pay used in severance calculations will be limited to £80,000; 
 The maximum severance (including statutory redundancy pay) will be limited to 3 

weeks’ pay per year of service or 15 months’ pay, whichever is the lower; 
 No severance will be payable if the member receives an immediate pension with a 

payment by the employer to cover the cost of early release of pension – the strain 
cost – except in the case of the severance amount exceeding the strain cost in which 
case the excess would be payable; 

 The amount available for any strain cost will be reduced by the statutory redundancy 
payment. 

 
Please see the following link to see a copy of the draft regulations: 
 

Page 71



https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/cons/lgpsew/20200907_DR.pdf  
 
Until these further reforms come in, there is currently a conflict between the exit cap 
regulations and the LGPS regulations when a scheme member aged 55 or over is made 
redundant and the total exit payment exceeds £95,000. The LGPS regulations require the 
member to take payment of an unreduced pension, but the exit cap regulations prevent the 
employer from paying the full strain cost. 
 
Until the LGPS regulations are amended we have decided to pay reduced benefits to 
members. 
After receiving advice from Hymans Robertson we have also changed the early retiremet 
factors and methodology to calculate the strain cost. We have adopt the factors and 
calculation methodology consistent with GAD’s draft guidance.  The benefit of this option is 
that these factors are expected to apply in the future once the LGPS Regulations are 
updated, so the calculations would be consistent over time.  However, the Fund’s admin 
software system cannot currently carry out these calculations, so we are currently calcuating 
these costs manually.   
 

6. Applying the cap and further reform in the LGPS 
 
The major impact of the regulations will be on LGPS members aged 55 or over who 
currently qualify for an unreduced pension because of redundancy or efficiency retirement 
as well as a severance payment under The Local Government (Early Termination of 
Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006. 
 
Once both the cap and further reforms are in place for members whose employers are both 
capped and subject to further reform the effect of the proposals will be significant as they 
would receive one of the following options: 
 

 have a fully unreduced pension paid immediately alongside the statutory redundancy 
payment but only if the employee tops up the strain cost, which will have been 
reduced by the value of their statutory redundancy pay; 

 have a partially reduced pension (i.e. not reduced due to early payment, but reduced 
on account of the statutory redundancy payment reducing the strain cost) paid 
immediately alongside the statutory redundancy payment; 

 have a fully reduced pension paid immediately alongside the statutory redundancy 
payment plus any entitlement to a discretionary redundancy payment and 
discretionary additional lump sum payment; 

 defer the pension to normal pension age (i.e. not take it immediately) and have the 
statutory redundancy payment plus any entitlement to a discretionary redundancy 
payment and discretionary additional lump sum payment. 
 

The above assumes the employer is both a capped and reform employer, the exact impact 
on members will depend on whether they fit under both or either definitions. 
 
It is expected that the MHCLG reforms will come into force Spring 2021. 
 
Currently our software provider, Aquila Heywood, are working on updating the system in 
order for it to calculate all the new options. In the meantime we will have to perform these 
complex calculations manually.   
 

Page 72

https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/cons/lgpsew/20200907_DR.pdf


 
 

Meeting: Pension Board 

Date: 22/02/2021 

Title: The Pension Regulator: Public Service Governance 

Survey 2020 

Purpose: Receive feedback from the Board in order to complete 
the survey  

Author: Meirion Jones, Pensions Manager 

 

 1. INTRODUCTION  

The Pensions Regulator has issued a survey for each local scheme manager to complete for the 

pension fund it administers. Gwynedd Council is the local scheme manager for the Gwynedd Pension 

Fund and is therefore responsible for completing the survey.  

The survey should be completed by the scheme manager working with the Pension Board chair. The 

Chairman of the Gwynedd Pension Board believes that the best way is for the Board to look at the 

survey and consider its response. The closing date for responses is 12th February 2021. However the 

Regulator is happy to extend the deadline for Gwynedd in order for us to receive an input from the 

Board at this meeting. 

2. THE SURVEY  

A copy of the survey is attached as Appendix A. The responses to the questions will be considered at 

this meeting and a final version will be agreed with the Chairman before it is sent to The Pensions 

Regulator. However to aid the completion of the survey, factual questions and the opinion of the 

Pensions Manager have been marked in Appendix A. These replies are open for discussion at the 

meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 13



 

Appendix A 

The Pensions Regulator 

Public Service Governance and Administration Survey 2020 

This document is intended to be used as a guide to help you gather the information required for the 
survey. Please note, however, that we need you to complete the questionnaire through the online 
survey link contained in your invitation email. 

Thank you for taking the time to complete this survey. Please answer the questions in relation to 
the scheme referenced in your invitation email. Where the scheme is locally administered, we mean 
the sub-scheme or fund administered by the local scheme manager.  

Your responses will be kept anonymous unless you consent otherwise at the end of the survey. 
Linking your scheme name to your answers will help inform The Pensions Regulator’s (TPR’s) 
engagement with you in the future. 

This survey should be completed by the scheme manager or by another party on behalf of the 
scheme manager. They should work with the pension board chair to complete it, and other parties 
(e.g. the administrator) where appropriate. 

There is a space at the end of the survey to add comments about your answers where you feel this 
would be useful. 

SECTION A – GOVERNANCE 
 
The first set of questions is about how your pension board works in practice. 
 
A1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Focusing on the scheme’s pension board meetings in the last 12 months, please tell us the 
following: 

Please write in the number for each of a-c below. Please include any board meetings that were held 
remotely (e.g. via teleconference or online meeting software) 

a) Number of board meetings that were scheduled 
to take place (in the last 12 months) .......4............ 

b) Number of board meetings that actually took 
place (in the last 12 months) ........4........... 

c) Number of board meetings that were attended 
by the scheme manager or their representative .......4............ 
(in the last 12 months) 

 
A2. ANSWER IF KNOW NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD (A1b=0+) 
Thinking about the number of pension board meetings that took place, was this more, the same or 
less than in the previous 12 month period? 

Please select one answer only 

1. More 
2. Same 
3. Less 
4. Don’t know 

 

Page 74



A3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Do the scheme manager and pension board have sufficient time and resources to run the scheme 
properly? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
A4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Do the scheme manager and pension board have access to all the knowledge, understanding and 
skills necessary to properly run the scheme? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
A5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
How often does the scheme manager or pension board carry out an evaluation of the knowledge, 
understanding and skills of the board as a whole in relation to running the scheme?  

Please select one answer only 

1. At least monthly 
2. At least quarterly 
3. At least every six months 
4. At least annually 
5. Less frequently 
6. Never 
7. Don’t know 

 
A6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
On average, how many hours of training per year does each pension board member have in 
relation to their role on the pension board? 

Please write in the number below 

.............20.................  hours per year 
 
A7. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does the pension board believe that in the last 12 months it has had access to all the information 
about the operation of the scheme it has needed to fulfil its functions? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
A8. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Is the pension board able to obtain sufficient specialist advice on cyber security when it needs to? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

  

Page 75



A9. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Focusing on the composition of your pension board, please tell us the following: 

Please write in the number for each of a-d below 

a) Number of current board members  .........6.......... 

b) Number of vacant positions on the board  ........0........... 

c) Number of members that have left the board 
in the last 12 months  .........0.......... 

d) Number of members that have been appointed 
to the board in the last 12 months  ..........0......... 

 
A10. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does the scheme have a succession plan in place for the members of the pension board? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 

SECTION B – MANAGING RISKS 
 
The next set of questions is about managing risks. 
 
B1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does your scheme have any of the following? 

Please select one answer per row Yes No Don’t know 

a) Its own documented procedures for assessing and 
managing risk (please select ‘No’ if your scheme 
relies on your local authority’s documented 
procedures for assessing and managing risk) 

○ ○ ○ 

b) A documented policy to manage the pension board 
members’ conflicts of interest 

○ ○ ○ 

c) Processes to monitor records for all membership 
types on an ongoing basis to ensure they are 
accurate and complete 

○ ○ ○ 

d) A process for monitoring the payment of 
contributions 

○ ○ ○ 

e) A process for resolving contribution payment issues ○ ○ ○ 

f) Procedures to identify breaches of the law ○ ○ ○ 

g) Procedures to assess breaches of the law and 
report these to TPR if required 

○ ○ ○ 

 

Page 76



B2. ANSWER IF HAVE ANY OF THE KEY PROCESSES AT B1 
When were these last reviewed by the scheme manager or pension board? 

Please select one answer per row 
(just for those selected at B1) 

In the 
last 12 
months 

More than 
12 months 

ago but 
less than 3 
years ago 

More than 
3 years 

ago 

Never 
been 

reviewed 
Don’t 
know 

a) The scheme’s own documented 
procedures for assessing and 
managing risk 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) The documented policy to 
manage the pension board 
members’ conflicts of interest 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) The processes to monitor records 
for all membership types on an 
ongoing basis to ensure they are 
accurate and complete 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

d) The process for monitoring the 
payment of contributions 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

e) The process for resolving 
contribution payment issues 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

f) The procedures to identify 
breaches of the law 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

g) The procedures to assess 
breaches of the law and report 
these to TPR if required 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
B3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does your scheme have its own risk register? 

Please select ‘No’ if your scheme relies on your local authority’s risk register. 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
B4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
In the last 12 months, how many pension board meetings reviewed the scheme’s exposure to new 
and existing risks? 

Please write in the number below 

...............4............... 
 

Page 77



B5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
To what do the top three governance and administration risks on your register relate? If you do 
not have a risk register, please tell us to what the top three governance and administration risks 
facing your scheme relate.  

Please select up to three options below 

1. Funding or investment 
2. Record-keeping (i.e. the receipt and management of correct data) 
3. Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) reconciliation 
4. Securing compliance with changes in scheme regulations 
5. Production of annual benefit statements 
6. Receiving contributions from the employer(s) 
7. Lack of resources/time 
8. Recruitment and retention of staff or knowledge 
9. Lack of knowledge, effectiveness or leadership among key personnel 
10. Poor communications between key personnel (board, scheme manager, administrator, etc.) 
11. Failure of internal controls 
12. Systems failures (IT, payroll, administration systems, etc.) 
13. Cyber risk (i.e. the risk of loss, disruption or damage to a scheme or its members as a result 

of the failure of its IT systems and processes) 
14. Administrator issues (expense, performance, etc.) 
15. Remediation (i.e. the actions required to remedy the age discrimination in the 2015 

schemes; also referred to as ‘McCloud’ or ‘Sergeant’) 
16. Other (please specify): ...................................................................................................... 
17. Don’t know 

 
B6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Which, if any, of the following actions have you taken in relation to the remediation proposals? 

By ‘remediation’ we mean the actions required to remedy the age discrimination in the 2015 
schemes. This is also often referred to as either ‘McCloud’ or ‘Sergeant’. 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Assessed the possible administration impacts 
2. Assessed the data requirements 
3. Commenced a specific data cleansing or data gathering exercise 
4. Assessed any additional resources likely to be required 
5. Discussed system requirements with IT suppliers 
6. Provided specific information to members 
7. Taken other actions (please specify): ................................................................................. 
8. None of these 
9. Don’t know 

 

SECTION C – ADMINISTRATION AND RECORD-KEEPING PROCESSES 
 
The next set of questions is about administration and record-keeping. 
 
C1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Does the scheme have an administration strategy? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 

Page 78



C2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Thinking about the scheme's objectives in terms of administration, how important are the 
following? 

Please select one answer 
per row 

Not at all 
important 

Not 
particularly 
important 

Neither 
important 

nor 
unimportant 

Fairly 
important 

Very 
important 

Don’t 
know 

a) Addressing issues 
which impair your 
ability to run your 
scheme effectively 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) Implementing 
legislative change 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) Meeting TPR’s 
expectations 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

d) Improving members’ 
experience (e.g. by 
providing online 
access) 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

e) Increasing automation 
or administrator 
efficiency 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

f) Moving to a new 
administration system 
or a new administrator 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

g) Reducing costs ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
 
C3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Which of the following best describes the scheme’s administration services? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Delivered in house 
2. Undertaken by another public body (e.g. a county council) under a shared service agreement 

or outsource contract 
3. Outsourced to a commercial third party 
4. Other 
5. Don’t know 

 
C4. ANSWER IF ADMINISTRATION IS CURRENTLY DELIVERED IN-HOUSE (C3=1) 
Are you likely to look to outsource any of your scheme administration in the next three years? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes – to another public body (e.g. a county council) under a shared service agreement or 
outsource contract  

2. Yes – to a commercial third party 
3. Yes – but unsure who to 
4. No 
5. Don’t know 

 
  

Page 79



C5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
In the last 12 months, how many pension board meetings had administration as a dedicated item 
on the agenda? 

Please write in the number below 

..............4................ 
 
C6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Is your scheme single employer or multi-employer? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Single employer scheme (i.e. used by just one employer) 
2. Multi-employer scheme (i.e. used by several different employers) 

 
C7. ANSWER IF SINGLE EMPLOYER SCHEME (C6=1)  
In the last 12 months, has your participating employer… 

Please select one answer per row Yes No Don’t know 

a) Always provided you with accurate and complete 
data? 

○ ○ ○ 

b) Always submitted the data required each month to 
you on time? 

○ ○ ○ 

 
C8. ANSWER IF SINGLE EMPLOYER SCHEME (C6=1) 
And in the last 12 months, has your participating employer submitted data to you electronically? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes – all data  
2. Yes – some but not all data 
3. No 
4. Don’t know 

 
C9. ANSWER IF MULTI-EMPLOYER SCHEME (C6=2) 
In the last 12 months, what proportion of your scheme’s employers have… 

Please write in the percentage (from 0% to 100%) in each box. If you don’t know exactly, please give 
approximate percentages 

a) Always provided you with accurate and complete data?  .........85.......... % 

b) Always submitted the data required each month to you on time? .......85............ % 
 
C10. ANSWER IF MULTI-EMPLOYER SCHEME (C6=2) 
And in the last 12 months, what proportion of your scheme’s employers have… 

Please write in the percentage (from 0% to 100%) for each of a-c below. If you don’t know exactly, 
please give approximate percentages. The percentages in the boxes should sum to 100% 

a) Submitted all data to you electronically?   ......100............. % 

b) Submitted some but not all data to you electronically? ........0........... % 

c) Not submitted any data to you electronically?    .........0.......... % 
 

SECTION D – CYBER SECURITY  
 

Page 80



The next set of questions is about your scheme’s cyber security. 
 
D1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Which, if any, of the following controls does your scheme have in place to protect your data and 
assets from ‘cyber risk’? 

By ‘cyber risk’ we mean the risk of loss, disruption or damage to a scheme or its members as a 
result of the failure of its information technology systems and processes. 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Roles and responsibilities in respect of cyber resilience are clearly defined and 
documented 

2. Cyber risk is on the risk register and regularly reviewed 
3. Assessment of the vulnerability to a cyber incident of the key functions, systems, assets 

and parties involved in the running of the scheme 
4. Assessment of the likelihood of different types of breaches occurring in the scheme  
5. Access to specialist skills and expertise to understand and manage the risk 
6. System controls (e.g. firewalls, anti-virus and anti-malware products and regular updates 

of software) 
7. Controls restricting access to systems and data  
8. Critical systems and data are regularly backed up 
9. Policies on the acceptable use of devices, passwords and other authentication, and on 

home and mobile working 
10. Policies on data access, protection, use and transmission which are in line with data 

protection legislation and guidance 
11. An incident response plan to deal with any incidents which occur 
12. The scheme manager has assured themselves of third party providers’ controls (including 

administrators) 
13. The scheme manager receives regular updates on cyber risks, incidents and controls 
14. The pension board receives regular updates on cyber risks, incidents and controls 
15. None of these 
16. Don’t know 

 
D2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Have any of the following happened to your scheme, including at your administration provider, in 
the last 12 months? 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Computers becoming infected with ransomware 
2. Computers becoming infected with other viruses, spyware or malware 
3. Attacks that try to take down your website or online services 
4. Hacking or attempted hacking of online bank accounts 
5. People impersonating your scheme in emails or online 
6. Staff receiving fraudulent emails or being directed to fraudulent websites 
7. Unauthorised use of computers, networks or servers by staff, even if accidental 
8. Unauthorised use or hacking of computers, networks or servers by people outside your 

scheme  
9. Any other types of cyber security breaches or attacks 
10. None of these 
11. Don’t know 

 
  

Page 81



D3. ANSWER IF EXPERIENCED ANY CYBER SECURITY BREACHES OR ATTACKS IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS 
(D2=1-9) 
Thinking of all the cyber security breaches or attacks experienced by your scheme in the last 12 
months (including at your administration provider), which, if any, of the following happened as a 
result? 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Software or systems were corrupted or damaged 
2. Personal data (e.g. on members, beneficiaries or staff) was altered, destroyed or taken 
3. Permanent loss of files (other than personal data) 
4. Temporary loss of access to files or networks 
5. Lost or stolen assets, trade secrets or intellectual property 
6. Money was stolen 
7. Your website or online services were taken down or made slower 
8. Lost access to any third-party services you rely on 
9. None of these 
10. Don’t know 

 
D4. ANSWER IF EXPERIENCED ANY CYBER SECURITY BREACHES OR ATTACKS IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS 
(D2=1-9) 
Did you report any of these cyber security breaches or attacks to…? 
Please select all the options that apply 

1. The pension board 
2. Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) 
3. TPR 
4. Members of your scheme 
5. None of these 
6. Don’t know 

 
D5. ANSWER IF EXPERIENCED ANY CYBER SECURITY BREACHES OR ATTACKS IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS 
& HAVE INCIDENT RESPONSE PLAN (D2=1-9 & D1=11) 
Still thinking about the cyber security breaches or attacks experienced in the last 12 months, did 
any of these trigger your scheme’s incident response plan? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
D6. ANSWER IF INCIDENT RESPONSE PLAN WAS TRIGGERED BY ANY CYBER SECURITY BREACHES OR 
ATTACKS IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (D5=1) 
How would you rate the effectiveness of the incident response plan? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Very effective 
2. Fairly effective 
3. Neither effective nor ineffective 
4. Not very effective 
5. Not at all effective 
6. Don’t know 

 
  

Page 82



D7. ANSWER IF INCIDENT RESPONSE PLAN WAS TRIGGERED BY ANY CYBER SECURITY BREACHES OR 
ATTACKS IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (D5=1) 
Have these experiences of implementing the incident response plan led you to make any changes 
to it? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 

SECTION E – ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS 
 
The next set of questions is about members’ annual benefit statements. 
 
E1a. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
In 2020, in which of the following ways were your active members sent their annual benefit 
statements? 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Via a digital online portal, with notification by email 
2. Via a digital online portal, with notification by letter 
3. Via a digital online portal, with no notification 
4. By post 
5. Other way(s) (please specify): ........................................................................................... 
6. Don’t know 

 
E1b. ANSWER IF USED MORE THAN ONE METHOD TO SEND ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS AT E1a 
In 2020, what proportion of your active members were sent their annual benefit statements in 
each of these ways? 

Please write in the percentage (from 0% to 100%) for each of a-e below. If you do not know exactly, 
please give approximate percentages 

a) Via a digital online portal, with notification by email .........90.......... % 

b) Via a digital online portal, with notification by letter ................... % 

c) Via a digital online portal, with no notification    ................... % 

d) By post   ........10........... % 

e) Other way(s) (please specify): .................................... ................... % 
 
E2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
In 2020, what proportion of active members received their annual benefit statements by the 
statutory deadline? 

Please write in the percentage below. If you do not know exactly, please give an approximate 
percentage 

............90.................. % 
 

Page 83



E3. ANSWER IF DEADLINE WAS MISSED FOR ANY MEMBERS (E2=0-99%) 
Was the missed deadline for issuing active member statements reported to TPR? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes - and Breach of Law report made 
2. Yes - but decided not to make a Breach of Law report 
3. No - not reported 
4. Don’t know 

 
E4. ANSWER IF MISSED DEADLINE WAS NOT REPORTED TO TPR (E3=3) 
What was the main reason for not reporting the breach? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Not material - few statements affected 
2. Not material - very short delay 
3. Other reason (please specify): ..........Work ongoing to correct records.................... 
4. Don’t know 

 
E5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
What proportion of all the annual benefit statements the scheme sent out in 2020 contained all 
the data required by regulations? 

Please write in the percentage below. If you do not know exactly, please give an approximate 
percentage 

.........100..................... % 
 

SECTION F – RESOLVING ISSUES 
 
The next set of questions is about resolving issues or complaints the scheme has received. 
 
F1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does the scheme have a working definition of what constitutes a complaint?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
F2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Focusing on the complaints you have received from members or beneficiaries in relation to their 
benefits and/or the running of the scheme, please tell us the following information. 

Please write in a number for each of a-c below 

a) Total number of complaints received in the last 12 months  .......2............ 

b) Number of complaints that have entered the Internal 
Dispute Resolution (IDR) process in the last 12 months  .......1............ 

c) Number of complaints that were upheld 
by the IDR process in the last 12 months   .........0.......... 

 

Page 84



F3. ANSWER IF ANY COMPLAINTS ENTERED THE IDR PROCESS IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (F2b>0) 
In the last 12 months, to what did the top three types of complaints entering the IDR process 
relate?  

Please select up to three options below 

1. Slow or ineffective communication 
2. Inaccuracies or disputes around pension value or definitions 
3. Delays to benefit payments 
4. Disputes or queries about the amount of benefit paid 
5. Delay or refusal of pension transfer 
6. Inaccurate data held and/or statement issued 
7. Pension overpayment and recovery 
8. Eligibility for ill health benefit 
9. Other (please specify): ....................................................................................................... 
10. Don’t know 

 

SECTION G – REPORTING BREACHES 
 
The next set of questions is about the scheme’s approach to dealing with any breaches of the law. 
 
G1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Do you maintain documented records of any breaches of the law identified?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
G2. ANSWER IF MAINTAIN RECORDS OF BREACHES OF THE LAW (G1=1)  
Do these records include the decision taken on whether or not to report the breach of the law to 
TPR?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
G3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Does the pension board receive reports on any breaches of the law identified?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Always 
2. Sometimes 
3. Never 
4. Don’t know 

 
G4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
In the last 12 months, have you identified any breaches of the law that were not related to annual 
benefit statements?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
G5. ANSWER IF ANY BREACHES OF THE LAW NOT RELATED TO ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS HAVE 
BEEN IDENTIFIED IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (G4=1)  

Page 85



What were the root causes of the breaches identified?  

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Systems or process failure 
2. Failure to maintain records or rectify errors 
3. Management of transactions (e.g. errors or delays in payments of benefits) 
4. Failure of the employer(s) to provide timely, accurate or complete data 
5. Late or non-payment of contributions by the employer(s) 
6. Other employer-related issues (please specify): ............................................................... 
7. Something else (please specify): ....................................................................................... 
8. Don’t know 

 
G6. ANSWER IF ANY BREACHES OF THE LAW NOT RELATED TO ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS HAVE 
BEEN IDENTIFIED IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (G4=1) 
In the last 12 months, have you reported any breaches to TPR as you thought they were materially 
significant? Please do not include any breaches that related to annual benefit statements. 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
SECTION H – GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 

 
The next set of questions is about your progress in addressing governance and administration 
issues. 
 
H1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
What do you believe are the top three factors behind any improvements made to the scheme’s 
governance and administration in the last 12 months?  

Please select up to three options below 

1. Improved understanding of underlying legislation and standards expected by TPR 
2. Improved engagement by TPR 
3. Improved understanding of the risks facing the scheme 
4. Resources increased or redeployed to address risks 
5. Administrator action (please specify): ................................................................................. 
6. Scheme manager action (please specify): ........................................................................... 
7. Pension board action (please specify): ............................................................................... 
8. Other (please specify): ........................................................................................................ 
9. No improvements made to governance/administration in the last 12 months 
10. Don’t know 

 

Page 86



H2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
What are the main three barriers to improving the governance and administration of your scheme 
over the next 12 months?  

Please select up to three options below 

1. Lack of resources or time 
2. Complexity of the scheme 
3. The volume of changes that are required to comply with legislation 
4. Recruitment, training and retention of staff and knowledge 
5. Lack of knowledge, effectiveness or leadership among key personnel 
6. Poor communications between key personnel (board, scheme manager, administrator, etc.) 
7. Employer compliance 
8. Issues with systems (IT, payroll, administration systems, etc.) 
9. The remediation process (also referred to as ‘McCloud’ or ‘Sergeant’) 
10. Other (please specify): ....................................................................................................... 
11. There are no barriers 
12. Don’t know 

 
SECTION I – COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

 
The next set of questions is about the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
I1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Since the COVID-19 lockdown started in March 2020, how would you rate the following? 

Please select one answer 
per row 

Not at all 
effective 

Not very 
effective 

Neither 
effective nor 
ineffective 

Fairly 
effective 

Very 
effective 

Don’t 
know 

a) Communication between 
the scheme manager and 
the administrator 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) Performance of the 
administrator 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) Relationship between 
the scheme manager and 
the pension board 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
I2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Prior to the COVID-19 lockdown did your scheme have a business continuity plan (BCP) in place? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes – its own BCP 
2. Yes – the local authority’s BCP 
3. No 
4. Don’t know 

 

Page 87



I3. ANSWER IF HAD BCP IN PLACE (I2=1-2) 
How would you rate the effectiveness of the BCP in helping your scheme respond to the COVID-19 
pandemic? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Very effective 
2. Fairly effective 
3. Neither effective nor ineffective 
4. Not very effective 
5. Not at all effective 
6. Don’t know 

 
I4. ANSWER IF HAD BCP IN PLACE (I2=1-2) 
What barriers, if any, did you face in implementing the BCP?  

Please select up to three options below 

1. Key person risks 
2. Staff shortages 
3. Issues with administration processes 
4. Issues with employer(s) 
5. Suitability of IT infrastructure 
6. Suitability of IT hardware (i.e. equipment) 
7. Suitability of IT software 
8. Ability of staff to work from home 
9. Lack of leadership  
10. Other (please specify): ....................................................................................................... 
11. There were no barriers 
12. Don’t know 

 
SECTION J – PENSIONS DASHBOARDS 

 
The government has made a commitment to facilitate the pensions industry in the creation of a 
digital interface that will present all of a person’s pensions together in one place. It is most often 
referred to in the industry as the ‘pensions dashboards’ project. 
 
J1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Before this survey, had you heard about pensions dashboards?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
J2. ANSWER IF AWARE OF PENSIONS DASHBOARDS (J1=1)  
The Pension Schemes Bill currently going through Parliament contains provisions to require 
trustees and scheme managers to provide data to savers through pensions dashboards. Before 
today, were you aware of this proposed change to pensions law?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 

Page 88



J3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements? 

Please select one answer 
per row 

Strongly 
disagree Disagree 

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree Agree 

Strongly 
agree 

Don’t 
know 

a) The introduction of 
pensions dashboards is, in 
principle, a good idea for 
savers 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) ANSWER IF AWARE OF 
PENSIONS DASHBOARDS 

(J1=1): The scheme will be 
able to deal with any 
administrative demands 
involved in delivering the 
pensions dashboards 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) ANSWER IF AWARE OF 
PENSIONS DASHBOARDS 

(J1=1): It will be easy for the 
scheme to implement 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

d) ANSWER IF AWARE OF 
PENSIONS DASHBOARDS 

(J1=1): The scheme will 
leave it as late as possible 
before preparing for the 
pensions dashboards 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
J4. ANSWER IF AWARE OF PENSIONS DASHBOARDS (J1=1) 
What, if any, challenges is the scheme likely to face in terms of preparing for the pensions 
dashboards?  

Please select up to three options below 

1. Knowing what is required 
2. Availability of data 
3. Accuracy of data 
4. Participating employer reticence 
5. Cost 
6. Software compatibility 
7. Capacity constraints 
8. Other (please specify): .............................................................................................. 
9. None – do not expect to face challenges 
10. Don’t know 

 

Page 89



J5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
From where do you expect to learn about the requirements for the pensions dashboards? 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. The Pensions Dashboards Programme (PDP) (led by the Money and Pensions Service) 
2. TPR 
3. The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) 
4. The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 
5. Your scheme advisory board 
6. Industry bodies e.g. PASA, PLSA 
7. Somewhere else (please specify): .....LGA and Software Provider: Aquila Heywood.......... 
8. Don’t know 

 

SECTION K – CLIMATE CHANGE (FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT SCHEMES ONLY) 
 
The next set of questions is about climate change. 
 
K1. ANSWER IF LOCAL GOVERNMENT SCHEME  
Firstly, has your scheme allocated time or resources to assessing any financial risks and 
opportunities associated with climate change?  

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
K2. ANSWER IF ALLOCATED TIME/RESOURCES TO CLIMATE CHANGE (K1=1)  
Has your scheme done any of the following…?  

Please answer yes if these have been done by advisers acting on your behalf. 

Please select one answer per row Yes No Don’t know 

a) Assessed the risks and opportunities for your scheme 
from particular climate-related scenarios 

○ ○ ○ 

b) Assessed your scheme portfolio’s potential contribution 
to global warming (this is also referred to as the 
‘implied temperature rise’ of the portfolio) 

○ ○ ○ 

c) Tracked the carbon intensity of your scheme’s portfolio 

 
○ ○ ○ 

 

Page 90



K3. ANSWER IF ALLOCATED TIME/RESOURCES TO CLIMATE CHANGE (K1=1)  
Which of the following processes do you use to manage climate-related risks and opportunities?  

Please select one answer per row Yes No Don’t know 

a) Include climate-related issues as a regular agenda item 
at pension board meetings 

○ ○ ○ 

b) Assign responsibility for climate-related issues to a 
specified individual or sub-committee 

○ ○ ○ 

c) Include, monitor and review targets in the scheme’s 
climate policy 

○ ○ ○ 

d) Add climate-related risks to your risk register ○ ○ ○ 

 
K4. ANSWER IF LOCAL GOVERNMENT SCHEME 
Thinking about your scheme’s investment and funding strategy, to what extent do you consider 
the following? Please answer on a scale of 1 to 5, where 1 means ‘you do not consider this at all’ 
and 5 means ‘it is a very significant consideration for your scheme’. 

Please select one answer 
per row 

1 – Do not 
consider 
this at all 2 3 4 

5 – Very 
significant 

consideration 
Don’t 
know 

a) Physical risks such as 
weather events, sea level 
exposure, heat wave 
exposure and drought risk 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) Transition risks such as 
increased pricing of 
greenhouse gas emissions 
and moves towards low-
carbon policies and 
technologies 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) Climate-related 
opportunities such as 
improved creditworthiness 
of the low-carbon sector or 
investments in new 
technologies 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

d) The participating 
employer’s/employers’ 
exposure to climate-related 
factors 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
 

Page 91



K5. ANSWER IF ALLOCATED TIME/RESOURCES TO CLIMATE CHANGE (K1=1)  
Have you taken any of the following actions on stewardship in order to help with your 
management of climate risks? 

By stewardship we mean the responsible allocation, management and oversight of capital to 
create long-term value for pension scheme members. 

Please select one answer per row Yes No Don’t know 

a) Talked to advisers and asset managers about how 
climate-related risks and opportunities are built into their 
engagement and voting policies 

○ ○ ○ 

b) When appointing new asset managers, asked the 
prospective manager how they include climate factors in 
engagement and voting behaviour 

○ ○ ○ 

c) When outsourcing activities, set out in legal documents 
your expectations on climate stewardship and approaches 
(e.g. in the Investment Management Agreement or in side 
letters to pooled fund documentation) 

○ ○ ○ 

d) Joined collaborative engagement efforts on climate 
change 

○ ○ ○ 

e) Signed the UK Stewardship Code ○ ○ ○ 

 
K6. ANSWER IF LOCAL GOVERNMENT SCHEME  
Are you aware of the work of the Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)? 

The Taskforce has made recommendations that help investors to understand financial exposure to 
climate risk and disclose this information in a clear and consistent way. 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 
K7. ANSWER IF AWARE OF TCFD (K6=1)  
Does your scheme make disclosures as recommended by the TCFD? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes 
2. No 
3. Don’t know 

 

Page 92



SECTION L – PERCEPTIONS OF TPR 
 
The final set of questions is about your views of TPR. 
 
L1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Thinking about your overall perception of TPR, to what extent do you agree or disagree with the 
following words as ways to describe TPR? 

Please select one answer per 
row Strongly 

disagree Disagree 

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree Agree 

Strongly 
agree 

Don’t 
know 

a) Tough ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) Efficient ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) Visible ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

d) Fair ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

e) Respected ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

f) Evidence-based ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

g) Decisive ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

h) Clear ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

i) Approachable ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

 
L2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Thinking now about how TPR operates, how effective do you think it is at improving standards in 
scheme governance and administration in public service pension schemes? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Very effective 
2. Fairly effective 
3. Neither effective nor ineffective 
4. Not very effective 
5. Not at all effective 
6. Don’t know 

 
L3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements? 

Please select one answer 
per row 

Strongly 
disagree Disagree 

Neither 
agree nor 
disagree Agree 

Strongly 
agree 

Don’t 
know 

a) TPR is effective at bringing 
about the right changes in 
behaviour among its 
regulated audiences 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

b) TPR is proactive at 
reducing serious risks to 
member benefits 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

c) TPR clearly explains its 
expectations in respect of 
administration 

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ 

  

Page 93



SECTION M – ATTRIBUTION 
 
Thank you for completing this survey. Your responses will help TPR understand how schemes are 
progressing and any issues they may face, which will inform further policy and product 
developments. Before you submit your answers, there are just a few more questions about your 
survey responses. 
 
M1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER 
Which of the following best describes your role within the pension scheme? 
Please select one answer only 

1. Scheme manager* 
2. Representative of the scheme manager 
3. Pension board chair 
4. Pension board member 
5. Administrator 
6. Other (please specify): ...................................................................................................... 

 
*In this survey ‘scheme manager’ refers to the definition within the Public Service Pensions Act, e.g. 
the Local Authority, Fire and Rescue Authority, Police Pensions Authority, Secretary of State/Minister 
or Ministerial department.  
 
M2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
What other parties did you consult with to complete this survey? 

Please select all the options that apply 

1. Scheme manager 
2. Representative of the scheme manager 
3. Pension board chair 
4. Pension board member 
5. Administrator 
6. Other 
7. Did not consult with any other parties 

 
M3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
To inform TPR’s engagement going forward, they would like to build an individual profile of your 
scheme by linking your scheme name to your survey answers. This will only be used for internal 
purposes by TPR and your scheme name would not be revealed in any published report. 

Are you happy for your responses to be linked to your scheme name and supplied to TPR for this 
purpose? 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes, I am happy for my responses to be linked to my scheme name and supplied to TPR for 
this purpose 

2. No, I would like my responses to remain anonymous 
 
M4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
And would you be happy for the responses you have given to be linked to your scheme name and 
shared with the relevant scheme advisory board? This is to help inform the advisory boards of 
areas for improvement and to further their engagement with pension boards. 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes, I am happy for my responses to be linked to my scheme name and shared with the 
relevant advisory board 

2. No, I would like my responses to remain anonymous 
 
M5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  

Page 94



TPR may conduct some follow up research on this topic to improve their advice and engagement 
with schemes such as yours. Would you be willing for us to pass on your name, contact details and 
relevant survey responses to them so that they, or a different research agency on their behalf, 
could invite you to take part?  

You may not be contacted and, if you are, there is no obligation to take part. Your contact details 
will be stored for a maximum duration of 12 months, before being securely destroyed. 

Please select one answer only 

1. Yes, I am happy to be contacted for follow-up research 
2. No, I would prefer not to be contacted for follow-up research 

 
M6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Please record your name below. This is just for quality control purposes and will not be passed on 
to TPR (unless you have agreed that they can contact you for follow-up research). 

Please write in below 

.........Meirion Jones (Pensions Manager) in conjunction with Osian Richards (Pension Board 
Chair) and members of the Board.................................................................................................. 

 
M7. EVERYONE TO ANSWER  
Finally, please use the space below if you have any other comments or would like to clarify/ 
explain any of the answers you have given. 

Please write in below if applicable 

................................................................................................................................................... 

................................................................................................................................................... 

................................................................................................................................................... 

................................................................................................................................................... 

................................................................................................................................................... 

................................................................................................................................................... 

................................................................................................................................................... 
 
 
Thank you. Please now submit your responses through the online survey link contained in your 

invitation email. If you have any queries or technical issues please contact James Murray (Director, 

OMB Research) at james.murray@ombresearch.co.uk 

 

Page 95


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 MINUTES OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE
	6 Risk Register
	Appendix 1 Risk Register February 2021

	7 Amended Work Plan
	8 Pension Board Training Requirements
	LGPS_National_Knowledge_Assessment_Report

	9 Budget 2021-22 Pensions and Investment Unit
	10 Consultant Objectives
	Appendix 1 Consultant Objectives

	11 Responsible Investment and Low Carbon Investments
	Appendix 1 Divesting Statement

	12 Public Sector Exit Payment Regulations 2020
	13 The Pension Regulator: Public Service Governance Survey 2020

